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‘ Environment }
Social
1

Management philosophy and

ESG management

| Management philosophy ‘

To prosper together

with the region

ESG management

To satisfy all of
our customers

To provide our staff

with stability
and opportunities

In pursuit of the improvement of mid to long term corporate value and the
realization of a sustainable society (business foundation).

overnance

Social issues

© Climate change
©® CO, reduction

Yamagata Bank initiatives

@ Forest conservation activities
@ Eco-cap promotion activities
@ Environment related finance

Social issues

® Community revitalization
® Population decline

® Human rights issues

@ Labor issues

Yamagata Bank initiatives

@ Local creation

@ Improvement of financial intermediary function
® Health management (White 500)

@ Parenting support

@ Sport and culture promotion activities

Corporate ethics compliance
Protection of personal information
Fraud prevention

Code of corporate governance
Cyber-security

Enhanced profit and risk management structures
Enhanced group management

Message from Management

We thank you for your kind support to Yamagata Bank.

Yamagata Bank’s main geographic area of focus, Yamagata
Prefecture, is located about 300 kilometers north of Tokyo,
a three hour ride on the Yamagata Shinkansen line.
Yamagata City, located at the center of Yamagata Prefec-
ture, is near Sendai (in Miyagi Prefecture), the largest city
of the Northeastern region of Japan, and the two cities
have been closely interconnected economically since ages
past.

Yamagata’s vibrant agricultural and manufacturing sectors
produce such agricultural goods as rice and cherries, and a
broad range of products from traditional crafts to electronics
manufacturing. Blessed with diligent workers, Yamagata
has earned an excellent reputation for high quality in both
agriculture and manufacturing.

On the other hand, Yamagata Prefecture’s population of
about 1.1 million is trending downward due to the declining
birthrate and aging population. In order to achieve sustain-
able prosperity in our region, we need to make efforts to
establish next-generation industries. For example, by
making agriculture more profitable, developing health care
businesses, promoting tourism, and developing new
products through an alliance of manufacturers and research
institutions. Yamagata Bank is a proud supporter of various
initiatives toward that end.

Japan'’s economy experienced a slow but welcome recovery
in 2017 helped by healthy domestic and overseas demand.
A rise in global semi-conductor demand led to increased
exports and manufacturing growth, and consumer demand
recovered slowly as well. The corporate sector activity rose
and together with the local economy of Yamagata achieved
arecovery.

Many regional financial institutions are experiencing an
increasingly difficult business environment due to the
continued low interest rate regime caused by the negative
interest rate policies of the Bank of Japan. Competition has
increased between financial institutions and merger and
consolidation activities have increased. Regional financial
institutions need to work harder than ever before to
strengthen their competitiveness and profitability.

On the other hand, assurances of transparency in bank
management are increasingly called for through an effective

response to new forms of financial governance, as repre-
sented by the Corporate Governance Stewardship Code,
the “Benchmark for Financial Intermediary Performance,”
and “Principles for Customer Focused Business Opera-
tions,” and in addition, Yamagata Bank is committed to the
continued strengthening of our governance, it being neces-
sary to advance customer protections such as money
laundering prevention and security measures to counter
cyberattacks.

From April of this year, Yamagata Bank embarked on our
19" Long Term Business Plan, “Yamagata Bank, Building
the Future: Vision for 2020 (for the period 2018 - 2020).
In order to help build the future for our “customers,” our “
region,” and “our bank,” we aim to be the “best partner bank
contributing to the advance of Yamagata,” and closely
aligned with our affiliates and group companies, to provide a
comprehensive range of financial information services
targeted specifically for the purpose of advancing our
regional economy, including a broad array of business
support services to companies and asset formation assis-
tance for individuals.

Thank you for your ongoing encouragement and support.

Kichishige Hasegawa
President

R



The Yamagata Bank, Ltd., and Consolidated Subsidiaries

19th long-term management plan (fiscal 2018-2020) Consolidated Five-Year Financial Highlights

Yamagata Bank: B“ilding the Future - Vision for 2020 Yen:In millions except per stock data and percentages
U.S.dollars:In thousands except per stock data and percentages

(April 2018 - March 2021)

.. .. . Years ended March 31

Our long-term vision (a vision for ten years into the future) , 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2018
For the fiscal year: (Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S.dollars)

We aim to be the best partner bank, responsible for contributing Orcinary iNCOMe «--v-vs-vesvvsvvevvvv ¥ 42488 ¥ 45880 ¥ 45252 ¥ 45070 ¥ 45738 § 399030
Ordinary EXPENSES ««««+rerrrrrrrnsrnernnineeaiins 35,350 37,802 34,504 33,250 34,534 332,738

tO the advance Of Yamagata. Income before income taxes «-++«-vereeeveeeeniininnn. 6,992 8,034 10,623 12,448 11,067 65,819
Net income attributable to owners of parent ------ 4,988 5,473 6,714 7,483 6,331 46,952

At the fiscal year-end

Total assets ---ccvvvriiii ¥ 2’61 8,1 79 ¥ 2’61 2‘784 ¥ 2’503‘672 ¥ 2’466’878 ¥ 2’379’31 0 $ 24]644’01 3
A Three Year Vision Aimed at Seriously Transforming Loans and bills diSCOUNtEd  «++«xveveverererrernrnnn. 1,726,334 1674250 1584509 1470267 1,409,351 16,249,387
Yamagata Bank to Build the Future of our Customers, the SECUMHES -+ vvevesereseeeeiieieieiecc, 732,995 717,552 741,165 821,614 854,183 6,899,428
Yama ga ta reg ion and Yama ga ta Bank. Total liabilities -+« vvvveveeiei 2,460,737 2,459,270 2,347,728 2,312,184 2,237,627 23,162,058
DEPOSIES  «++verereresesrsrrataiaiaieieieieicit 2,206,819 2,180,460 2075390 2,036,421 2,019,521 20,772,019
Total net assets --vvvvevveiriiiii 157,442 153,514 165,944 154,694 141,682 1,481,954
Our three major targets are: Amounts per stock (Yen) (US dollars)
Cash JIVIAENAS  «++vvverenermnermnemnerinenineninanenns ¥ 21.00 ¥ 7.00 ¥ 7.00 ¥ 6.00 ¥ 600 $ 0.19
Net income attributable to owners of parent-------.. 153.04 167.74 41.08 45.62 37.14 1.44
Diluted net income attributable to owners of parent --- 136.52 149.68 36.67 41.00 - 1.28
(-I ) Our Customersl (2) Creating NeW Value (3) Raising the Corporate NEt ASSELS cvvrerrerrrriiiiiiiiii e 4,825.85 4,705.09 904.81 900.00 789.89 45.42
Sustainable Growth in the Yamagata Region Value of Yamagata Bank
P ios:
Ratios: 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Capital adequacy ratio (Domestic standard)----- 11.61% 12.11% 12.77% 13.24% 13.92%

Outline of Three Major Challenges: _ _ -
Notes 1 : U.S. dollars represent transactions, for the convenience of readers, at ¥ 106.24=U.S.$1.00 the rate prevailing on March 31, 2018

2 : Effective on October 1, 2017, the Bank executed the 1-for-5 stock consolidation. Per stock information except cash dividends are calculated under assumption that the stock

Yamagata Bank, responsible for the advance of Yamagata, is contributing to developing our consolidation had taken effect at the preceding fiscal year.

regional economy through a broad array of business support services to companies and asset 3 : Effective on October 1, 2017, the Bank executed the 1-for-5 stock consolidation. The dividend of ¥21.00 per stock for March 31, 2018 is the sum of the intermediate

building assistance for individuals dividend of ¥3.50 and the year-end dividend of ¥ 17.50, with the interim dividend ¥ 3.50 being the pre-merger dividend, and the year-end dividend ¥ 17.50 the post-merger
dividend.

Net income attributable to owners of parent | Total net assets
proved (Millions of yen) (Billions of yen)
for Revitalizing 3 E
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LR N~ — o)
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© ©
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Independent Auditor's Report

The Board of Directors
The Yamagata Bank , Ltd.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of The Yamagata Bank, Ltd. and its
consolidated subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at March 31, 2018, and the
consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, changes in net assets, and cash flows for the year
then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, all expressed
in Japanese yen.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan, and for designing and operating such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in Japan. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. The purpose of an audit of the consolidated financial statements is not to express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control, but in making these risk assessments the auditor considers internal
controls relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of The Yamagata Bank, Ltd. and its consolidated subsidiaries as at March 31,
2018, and their consolidated financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in Japan.

Convenience Translation

We have reviewed the translation of these consolidated financial statements into U.S. dollars, presented for the
convenience of readers, and, in our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements have been
properly translated on the basis described in Note 2.

W!JM%W L).C

June 22, 2018
Yamagata, Japan

Review of Operations
The Conditions of Consolidated Accounts

The general situa-
tion of this term
(from April 1, 2017
to March 31, 2018)

Deposits and negotiable certifi-

cates of deposit

As a result of our efforts to offer
products that respond to the diverse
requirements to our customers, the
year-end consolidated balance of
deposits and negotiable certificates of
deposit rose by ¥25.1 billion during
the fiscal year to ¥2,321.3 billion.

Deposited financial assets

The year-end consolidated balance of
deposited financial assets rose by ¥
10.5 billion during the year to ¥377.1
billion, due to reasons such as a
satisfactory increase in personal
insurance.

Loans

The year-end consolidated balance of
loans rose by ¥52.0 billion to ¥
1,726.3 billion. This was realized
because the Bank proactively
responded to the demand for funds by
local companies and local public
entities, and made constant efforts to
increase loans to personal customers,
mainly focusing on housing loans.

Securities

As a result that we invested assets by
attaching importance to safety and
liquidity and paying close attention to
investment conditions and make
trends, the vyear-end consolidated
balance of securities rose by ¥15.4
billion to ¥732.9 billion.

Profit and loss

The consolidated ordinary income
decreased by ¥3,397 million from the
previous year to ¥42,488 million,
mainly because of a decrease in gains
on sales of bonds. The consolidated
ordinary expenses decreased by ¥
2,452 million from the previous year to
¥35,350 million, mainly because of a
decrease in losses on sales of bonds
and provision of reserve for possible
loan losses.

As a result, the consolidated ordinary
income (net) decreased by ¥945
million during the year to ¥7,138
million, and the consolidated net
income attributable to owners of parent
decreased by ¥485 million during the
year to ¥4,988 million.

Results by business segment

In  banking business, the ordinary
income for the fiscal year was ¥36,146
million, which was ¥3,521 million less
than that for the previous fiscal year; the
segment profit for the fiscal year was ¥
6,367 million, which was ¥887 million
less than that for the previous fiscal
year.

In the leasing business, the ordinary
income for the fiscal year was ¥5,222
million, which was ¥292 million more
than that for the previous vyear; the
segment loss for the fiscal year was ¥
2 million, which was ¥113 million less
than that for the previous fiscal year.

In other business sectors, the ordinary
income for the fiscal year was ¥2,405
million, which was ¥37 million less
than that for the previous fiscal year;
the segment profit for the fiscal year
was ¥640 million, which was ¥10
million less than that for the previous
fiscal year.

Cash flow

Cash flow from operating activities
was negative at ¥52.1 billion, mainly
due to increase in loans.

Cash flow from investing activities was
negative at ¥19.3 billion, because the
outflow generated by acquisition of
securities etc exceeded the inflow
generated by the sales and redemption
of securities, etc.

Cash flow from financing activities was
negative at ¥1.1 billion, because of
payments of dividends etc.

As a result of the above, the year-end
consolidated balance of cash and cash
equivalents decreased by ¥72.6 billion
during the year to ¥76.7 billion.



The Yamagata Bank, Ltd., and Consolidated Subsidiaries

Financial Statements

Consolidated Balance Sheet
As of March 31, 2018 and 2017

Assets

Cash and due from banks (NOte 18) «+wrreeverremiii
Call loans and bills purchased
Monetary claims bought ...........................................................................
Trading securities (NOTE 21) +rrrrvrrirririri
Securities (Note 4, 5, 7, 11 and 21)
Loans and bills discounted (Note 6) -
Foreign exchange -«
Other assets (NOTE 7)  vrerveemmeemee i
Tangible fixed assets (Note 10) ...............................................................
Buildings (Note 9)
Land (NOTE 8)  «vvveeeeermmmmieieeiiiiiiii i
CONSEraction iN PrOGIESS ««ww+rwrrrrrrrrsirsiisie i
Other tangible fixed assets (Note 9)
Intangible fixed assets
Software - -ovoeeerrimrire
Other intangible fixed @SSEtS ««-«-xw-rwerrrerrireiei
Assets for retirement benefits (NOte 24) ooverremnni
Deferred tax assets (Note 25) v
Customers' liabilities for acceptances and guarantees -««+««++-««+sveeveeneeens
Reserve for possible 108N [0SSES -++«ww--xwrrerrrremimrraiiiieiiii
TOLAl ASSEES  +vvvvvevrrrnerneretet e

Liabilities and Net Assets

Liabilities

Deposits (Note 7) ....................................................................................
Negotiable certificate of deposits
Call money and bills SOId -+
Payables under securities lending transactions (Note 7)  ----oeeeeeevvinenieens
Borrowed money (Note 7)
Foreign exchange .......................................................................................
Bonds with stock acquiSition rights «««««x - ooeveeeremmmii
Other liabilities
Reserve for bonuses t0 dir@Ctors «----«w oeovemrmmmieeniii
Liabilities for retirement benefits (Note 24) e
Reserve for directors' retirement benefits «««««+ooverveereeee

Reserve for stock payments of board incentive plan
Reserve for losses on dormant deposits repayments
Reserve for 10SSeS 0N CONTINGENCIES  ++++++rvrrrrrrreerenniiiiiii
Reserve for point service PIOZIAIM  -evevsererrmniniii ettt
Reserve for loss due to returning interests -
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 25) ...............................................................
Deferred tax liabilities arising from revaluation of land (Note 8) «-------------
Acceptance and guarantees
Total lIabilities  «ccccrecoeeerrerrerrii

Net Assets

Shareholders' equity (Note 16 and 29)
COMMON STOCK ++e++vererrmerrnertnettiattiee ettt e e e e
Cap|ta| Surp|u5 .......................................................................................
Retained earnings .................................................................................
Treasury stock
Total shareholders' eqUIty -+« wwrreerr
Net unrealized holding gain on securities available for sale (Note 22) -
Deferred gain(loss) on hedging iNnStruments  «««---oooevevvvvve.
Revaluation of land (NOte 8) «+«wtervrerrrmmreniiiiii
Retirement benefits liability adjustments -«
Total accumulated other comprehensive INCome «----vvvvreeeiiiiiniii.
NON-CONtrolling INtErEStS  «rrrrrrrrrrrrrrrri
Total NBL ASSELS  ++rrrrrrrrrrerrree e
Total liabilities and NEt ASSELS +w««++rrrrrrrrrrrmerrmmtrriiiietiiiiae e

2018

(Millions of yen)

2017

(Millions of yen)

2018

(Thousands of U.S. dollars)(Note 2)

¥ 82,343
1,339
5,797

4
732,995
1,726,334
941
39,241
14,977
3,818
9,109
26
2,022
1,990
1,781
208
930
289
18,720
(7,727)

¥ 153,056
8,377
5,648

22
717,552
1,674,250
979
22,656
14,543
3,617
9,175
30
1,719
1,926
1,716
210
940
291
19,615
(7,077)

$ 775,068
12,612
54,571

44
6,899,428
16,249,387
8,864
369,369
140,977
35,942
85,747
250
19,037
18,736
16,771
1,964
8,756
2,722
176,211
(72,737)

¥ 2,618,179

¥ 2,612,784

$ 24,644,013

¥ 2,206,819
114,497
7,968
26,536
54,245
32
10,624
15,343
25

48

5

45

143

301

38

60
3,973
1,308
18,720

¥ 2,180,460
115,701
11,219
45,126
53,245
53
11,219
16,327
22

47

2

24

47

226

35

62
4,507
1,324
19,615

$ 20,772,019
1,077,721
75,000
249,774
510,595
301
100,000
144,425
235

458

48

431

1,347
2,834

363

571
37,400
12,319
176,211

¥ 2,460,737

¥ 2,459,270

$ 23,162,058

¥ 12,008 ¥ 12,008 $ 113,032
10,215 10,215 96,158
120,721 116,853 1,136,310
(3,176) (3,171) (29,896)
139,769 135,906 1,315,604
18,654 18,824 175,584
(2,184) (2,578) (20,564)
1,164 1,188 10,963

(110) 24 (1,043)
17,523 17,457 164,940

149 149 1,408

¥ 157,442 ¥ 153514 $ 1,481,954
¥ 2,618,179 ¥ 2612784 $ 24,644,013

Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income

For the years ended March 31, 2018 and 2017

Consolidated Statement of Income

Ordinary INCOM@ oo

INTEIEST INCOME v vvrrrmrme ettt e
Interest on loans and diSCOUNTS -« reerrrrrrmmmrneriiii s
Interest and dividends on securities -
Interest on call loans and bills bought ----
Interest on receivables under resale agreements -----

Interest on deposits with banks —««xoooveeevr
OFNEr INTEIEST  vvvrrrrrrrmernetne ittt

Fees and commissions

Other operating income

Other INCOME <+« vvrrrrrrmrreriemiiiiieiieienns
Recoveries of written off Claims oo oeeeeeeem
Other (NOTE 12)  verreeermiiiiiie i

Ordinary Expenses ...........................................................................

Interest Expense .......................................................................................
INtEreSt ON AEPOSITS  «rr-rvrreesmrrre e
Interest on negotiable certificate of depPOSIts «++- vrrwverreeres
Interest on call money and bills SOId +++vxrvvereererii
Interest on payables under securities lending transaction
Interest on borrowings and rediSCoUNts — ««««-veeeeeermmiiieniees
OFNEr INTEIEST  vvvrerrrrrmernetn ettt

Fees and COMMISSIONS PAYMENTS  ««-xveervresmrreirsii

Other operating EXPEINISE ++vvreeemrre ettt e ettt

General and administrative expenses (Note 13) --ooeeeerrn

Other expenses
Provision on allowance for [0an [0SSES  «+++wterrreereerreriiiiiii,

Ordinary Income (Net) .....................................................................

Extraordinary 107000 11 = TR T TR T T TP P
Gain on disposal of fixed assets -« v
(0] 107= ST T T T TP PN

Extraordinary [OSSES  «vrerveerrenmtumuiiiiiiiiiiiii s
Loss on disposal oOf fixed @SSets -« v
|mpairment loss (Note 14) .....................................................................

Income before income taxes e

INCOME TAXES-CUITEINT «« v v veeeremtmemttttet e
Income taxes-deferred (NOte 25) oo ovvrrovvrmnin
Total INCOME TAXES - :coveerereraemtarmtiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiisieierai et sniaaaas

NEet INCOME -+ - - oo

Net income attributable to non-controlling interests ------eeeeveeieeeeeiinens
Net income attributable to owners of parent oo

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

INET INCOME -+ cvererrertiiiiiii ittt taaas

Other comprehensive income (NOte 15)  +oeerrrrrrmrne
Net unrealized holding gain on securities available for sale --------eeeeeeeee
Deferred gain (loss) on hedging instruments
Retirement benefits liability adjustments ««---------eeeeee

Comprehensive INCOME  ceerereremiiiiiiiiiiiiiiici s
Comprehensive Income attributable to owners of parent
Comprehensive Income attributable to non-controlling interests -+«

2018 2017 2018
(Millions of yen) (Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S. dollars)(Note 2)
¥ 42,488 ¥ 45,886 $ 399,930
25,186 25,457 237,072
17,799 17,946 167,536
7,207 7,269 67,845
92 130 871
(0) - 3)
8 9 78
79 101 745
7,626 7,671 71,786
6,712 9,624 63,181
2,963 3,132 27,890
15 11 146
2,947 3,121 27,743
35,350 37,802 332,738
2,168 2,480 20,408
753 1,080 7,091
59 100 564
5 17 47
274 139 2,587
144 82 1,358
930 1,060 8,759
2,436 2,301 22,929
6,825 8,266 64,250
22,025 22,281 207,316
1,894 2,472 17,833
1,095 1,673 10,308
799 798 7,524
7,138 8,083 67,192
0 0 1
0 0 0
0 - 1
146 49 1,374
73 49 690
72 - 684
6,992 8,034 65,819
2,630 3,081 24,758
(626) (720) (5,894)
2,004 2,361 18,864
4,988 5,673 46,954
0 200 2
¥ 4,988 ¥ 5,473 $ 46,952
¥ 4,988 ¥ 5,673 $ 46,954
89 (3,859) 839
(170) (5,297) (1,601)
394 852 3,710
(134) 586 (1,269)
5,077 1,814 47,794
5,077 1,615 47,791
0 198 2

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 7



Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets

Shareholders' equity

For the year ended March 31, 2018
Common stock

Retained earnings Total shareholders'

Balance as April 1, 2017 «coceeeeveceecneeeens ¥ 12,008
Changes in the consolidated fiscal year
Cash Dividends ..............................

Net income attributable to owners
of parent .......................................

Acquisition of treasury stocks «-:-ceeee-
Disposal of treasury stocks «-:eececeeeeees
Acquisition of stocks of subsidiaries -:-
Reversal of land revaluation ««--«--+--cee--

Changes in items other than

shareholders’ equity items

in the consolidated fiscal year -----------
(net amounts)

Total ceeeeeeeeeeeiiiiiiiiiiiiiii —_

Balance as of March 31, 2018 «-+«ceceveeees ¥ 12,008

Shareholders' equity (Thousands of U.S. dollars) (Note 2)

For the year ended March 31, 2018
Common stock

Retained earnings Total shareholders'

Ba|ance as Apr|| 1’ 2017 ..................... $ 113’032
Changes in the consolidated fiscal year
Cash DiVidendS ..............................

Net income attributable to owners
Of parent .......................................

Acquisition of treasury stocks «----+---e--
Disposal of treasury stocks -+«-eeeeeeeees
Acquisition of stocks of subsidiaries ---
Reversal of land revaluation -+-+«++++----

Changes in items other than

shareholders’ equity items

in the consolidated fiscal year -++-++++----
(net amounts)

TOtal ceeeererrnrernnmrerninreriinnenian e —

Balance as of March 31, 2018 $ 113,032

Shareholders' equity

For the year ended March 31, 2017
Common stock

Retained earnings Total shareholders'

Balance as April 1, 2016 «c-cceeeveseececeens ¥ 12,008
Changes in the consolidated fiscal year
Cash Dividends ..............................

Net income attributable to owners
of parent .......................................

Acquisition of treasury stocks «-:-ceeeet
Disposal of treasury stocks «-:-ececeeeeees
Acquisition of stocks of subsidiaries ---
Reversal of land revaluation ««--««+«-ce---

Changes in items other than

shareholders’ equity items

in the consolidated fiscal year -----------
(net amounts)

Total ceeeeeeeeeeeiiiiiiiiiiiiiii —_

Balance as of March 31, 2017 «-cecceceveeees ¥ 12,008

8 See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

Accumulated other comprehensive income

(Millions of yen)

Net unrealized holding ~ Deferred gain

Retirement benefits ~ Total accumulated

) L . Revaluation . Non-controlling  Total net
For the year ended March 31, 2018 gain on securiies  (loss) on hedging of land other comprehensive interests assets
available for sale instruments income
Balance as April 1, 2017 cceceveeeeeeceeennes ¥ 18,824 ¥ (2,578) ¥ 1,188 ¥ 17,457 ¥ 149 ¥ 153,514
Changes in the consolidated fiscal year
Cash Dividends «ecceeeereeiiiiiiiiiiiiii (1 ,143)
Net income attributable to owners
of parent ....................................... 4’988
Acquisition of treasury stocks ««-:-c--e-e- (8)
Disposal of treasury stocks «--cececeeeeees 3
Acquisition of stocks of subsidiaries --- -
Reversal of land revaluation «««-«--«--ex+ 23
Changes in items other than
shareholders’ equity items
in the consolidated fiscal year ---+++++---- (170) 394 (23) 65 0 65
(net amounts)
TOtAl cevrereerrnneerrineeriiieerii e (170) 394 (23) 65 0 3,928
Balance as of March 31, 2018 ¥ 18654 ¥  (2,184) ¥ 1,164 ¥ 17,523 ¥ 149 ¥ 157,442

Accumulated other comprehensive income

(Thousands of U.S. dollars) (Note 2)

Net unrealized holding  Deferred gain

Retirement benefits ~ Total accumulated

For the year ended March 31, 2018 gain on securities ~ (loss) on hedging Re;/f ll;:gon other comprehensive Norilr-](t:gg;?slling T;’::LT:t
available for sale instruments income
Balance as April 1, 2017 ceeeeeveeeeeeeennns $ 177,186 $ (24274) $ 11,187 $ 164,325 § 1,406 $ 1,444,973
Changes in the consolidated fiscal year
Cash Dividends eeeeeeececiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiia (101767)
Net income attributable to owners
of parent ....................................... 46,952
Acquisition of treasury stocks «-------ee- (80)
Disposal of treasury stocks «::::eeeeeeees 34
Acquisition of stocks of subsidiaries --- -
Reversal of land revaluation ««------------ 223
Changes in items other than
shareholders’ equity items
in the consolidated fiscal year -+++++«+---- (1,601) 3,710 (223) 615 2 617
(net amounts)
TOtAl cevvereerrnreermmeerminieiineeiieerienan (1,601) 3,710 (223) 615 2 36,980
Balance as of March 31, 2018 «--cceeeeeveee $ 1755584 $ (20564) $ 10,963 $ 164,940 §$ 1,408 $ 1,481,954

Accumulated other comprehensive income

(Millions of yen)

Net unrealized holding  Deferred gain Revaluation

For the year ended March 31, 2017  ganonsecuiles  (ossjonhedging = ¢\ g
available for sale instruments

Retirement benefits ~ Total accumulated
other comprehensive

Non-controlling  Total net

) interests assets
income

Balance as April 1, 2016 --c-eceereeeeeenees ¥ 24111 ¥ (3,431) ¥ 1,182 ¥ 21,300 ¥ 8,066 ¥ 155,944
Changes in the consolidated fiscal year
Cash Dividends «cceeeeereeerreneiiiianinn. (1 ,225)
Net income attributable to owners
of [0 1(=1 0] AEERT TR PP PR PP PP PPPEPEPRPIPIPRR 5’473
Acquisition of treasury stocks --++:---+- (194)
Disposal of treasury Stocks «--:ceseeeeees
Acquisition of stocks of subsidiaries --- 5,281
Reversal of land revaluation -----+++++++++ (6)
Changes in items other than
shareholders’ equity items
in the consolidated fiscal year -+-«--+---- (5,287) 852 6 (3,842) (7,916) (11,759)
(net amounts)
Total ceeeeeeeereriiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie (5,287) 852 6 (3,842) (7’91 6) (2,430)
Balance as of March 31, 2017 --.-eex------- ¥ 18824 ¥ (2578) ¥ 1,188 ¥ ¥ 17,457 ¥ 149 ¥ 153514

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 9



Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

For the years ended March 31, 2018 and 2017

Cash flows from operating activities

Income before income taxes
Depreciation
Loss on impairment of fixed assets
Reserve for possible loan losses
Reserve for bonuses to directors
Assets for retirement benefits
Liabilities for retirement benefits
Reserve for directors' retirement benefits
Reserve for stock payments of board incentive plan
Reserve for loss due to returning interests
Reserve for losses on dormant deposits repayments
Reserve for losses on contingencies
Reserve for point service program
Interest income
Interest expense
Loss (gain) on investment securities
Foreign exchange gain, net
Loss on disposal of fixed assets
Net decrease (increase) in loans and bills discounted
Net increase (decrease) in deposits
Net increase (decrease) in negotiable certificate of deposits
Net increase (decrease) in borrowed money (excluding subordinated borrowings)
Net decrease (increase) in due from banks (excluding due from Bank of Japan)
Net decrease (increase) in call loans and bills purchased
Net increase (decrease) in call money and bills sold
Net increase (decrease) in payables under securities lending transactions
Net decrease (increase) in trading securities
Net decrease (increase) in foreign exchange-assets
Net increase (decrease) in foreign exchange-liabilities
Proceeds from fund management
Payments for finance
Other
Subtotal
Income taxes paid
Income taxes refunded
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchases of investment securities
Proceeds from sales of investment securities
Proceeds from redemption of investment securities
Expenditure for acquisition of tangible fixed assets
Income from sale of tangible fixed assets
Expenditure for acquisition of intangible fixed assets
Income from sale of intangible fixed assets

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Dividends paid
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests
Purchases of treasury stock
Proceeds from sales of treasury stock
Acquisition of stocks of subsidiaries

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year (No.18)

1 0 See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

2018

(Millions of yen)

2017

(Millions of yen)

2018

(Thousands of U.S. dollars)(Note 2)

¥ 6,992 ¥ 8,034 $ 65,819
1,122 970 10,565
72 - 684

650 604 6,118

2 2) 23
(183) 14 (1,726)

1 0 14

2 (273) 24

21 24 204
(2) (9) (21)

96 (8) 905

74 5 704

2 35 28
(25,186) (25,457) (237,072)
2,168 2,480 20,408
(2,721) (2,572) (25,618)
36 176 346

73 49 690
(52,302) (89,786) (492,308)
26,579 105,106 250,183
(1,204) (4,143) (11,338)
1,092 5,182 10,281
(1,943) (252) (18,292)
6,868 8,693 64,647
(3,166) (3,955) (29,802)
(18,308) 10,044 (172,331)
18 5 171
(4) 79 (42)
(21) 15 (200)
24,960 25,658 234,940
(2,514) (2,719) (23,669)
(12,953) 988 (121,924)
(49,676) 38,989 (467,584)
(2,717) (3,091) (25,581)
226 0 2,136
(52,166) 35,898 (491,029)
(449,849) (354,502) (4,234,276)
375,250 308,247 3,532,099
57,009 63,228 536,607
(1,283) (1,349) (12,080)
0 15 5
(468) (662) (4,406)
(19,341) 14,990 (182,051)
(1,143) (1,225) (10,767)
- (5) -
(8) (194) (80)

3 - 34

- (2,819) -
(1,148) (4,245) (10,813)
0 0 8
(72,655) 46,644 (683,885)
¥ 149,420 ¥ 102,776 $ 1,406,445
76,764 149,420 722,560

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

March 31, 2018

1. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of The Yamagata
Bank, Ltd. (the "Bank") have been prepared in accordance with the
provisions set forth in the Financial Instruments and Exchange Act of
Japan and its related accounting regulations and the Enforcement
Regulation for the Banking Law of Japan (the "Banking Law") , and in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan
("Japanese GAAP"), which are different in certain respects as to
application and disclosure requirements of International Financial
Reporting Standards.

The notes to the consolidated financial statements include information
which is not required under accounting principles generally accepted
in Japan but is presented herein as additional information.

As permitted by the Financial Instruments and Exchange Act amounts
of less than one million yen have been omitted. As a result, the totals
shown in the accompanying consolidated financial statements (both in
yen and U.S.dollars) do not necessarily agree with the sums of the
individual amounts.

2. U.S.Dollar Amounts

The Bank maintains its records and prepares its financial statements in
yen. Amounts in U.S.dollars are presented solely for the convenience
of readers outside Japan. The rate of 106.24=U.S.$1.00, the rate of
exchange in effect on March 31, 2018, has been used in translation.
The translation should not be construed as a representation that yen
could be converted into U.S. dollars at the above or any other rate.

3. Summary of Significant Acco-
unting Policies

a. Principles of consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the
accounts of the Bank and its 7 subsidiaries, except for 2 subsidiaries
which are not consolidated due to its immateriality.

All significant intercompany receivables and payables and transactions
have been eliminated in consolidation.

Goodwill represents the difference between the cost of an acquisition
and the fair value of the net assets of the acquired subsidiary at the
date of acquisition. Immaterial goodwill is charged to income when
incurred.

b. Securities

Securities are classified into three categories: trading, held-to-maturity
bonds, or other securities (securities available for sale). Trading
account securities, which are purchased for trading purpose, are
carried at market value and held-to-maturity bonds are carried at
amortized cost. Marketable securities classified as securities available
for sale are carried at market value with changes in unrealized holding
gain or loss, net of the applicable income taxes, included directly in
net assets. Available-for-sale securities whose fair value is deemed to
be extremely difficult to determine are carried at cost. Cost of securi-
ties sold is determined by the moving average method.

c. Derivative financial instruments
Derivatives are stated at fair market value.

d. Tangible fixed assets

The Bank recognizes depreciation by the straight-line method applicable
to each specific category of assets. The useful lives of buildings and
equipment are summarized as follows:

Buildings : 2 to 50 years  Equipment : 2 to 15 years

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets of the consolidated subsidiaries
is mainly computed using the straight-line method over the estimated
useful lives of respective assets.

e. Intangible fixed assets
Intangible fixed assets are depreciated by the straight-line method. The

Bank's software, which is used in-house, is depreciated based on the
estimated period of use (mainly five years) at the Bank and at consoli-
dated subsidiaries.

f. Leased assets

Leased assets on finance lease transactions that do not transfer
ownership are depreciated over the useful life of assets, equal to the
lease term, by the straight-line method with zero residual value or,
where lease agreements stipulate guarantee of residual value, the
guaranteed residual value. The Bank leases certain vehicle, computer
equipment and other assets.

g. Reserve for possible loan loss

The reserve for possible loan losses of the Bank is provided in
accordance with internally established standards for write-offs and
reserve provisions. The reserve for possible loan losses on loans to
borrowers who are classified as substantially bankrupt or who are
legally bankrupt is provided based on the amount remaining after
deduction of the amounts expected to be recoverable from the
disposal of collateral and amounts recoverable under guarentees. In
addition, an allowance is provided for loans to borrowers who,
although not legally bankrupt, are experiencing serious difficulties and
whose failure is imminent. In such cases, a portion of this allowance is
provided based on the amount remaining after deduction of the
amounts expected to be recoverable from the disposal of collateral
and the amounts recoverable under guarantees, and the balance of the
allowance is provided after giving full consideration to the amount
which the borrower is deemed capable of repaying. In the case of all
other loans, the amount provided as an allowance is based on the
Bank's historical percentage of actual defaults over a specific fixed
period in the past.

The relevant departments assess the assets for all of the credit, based
on self-assessment standards for assets, and an independent asset
audit department audits the results of the assessments. We provide a
reserve described above based on the assessment results.

The reserve for possible loan losses is calculated based on the quality
of the Bank's total loan assets, applying the Bank's internally
established rules for the self-assessment of its assets.

h. Reserve for bonuses to directors

A reserve for bonuses to directors and corporate auditors is provided in
the amount accrued during the year, which is calculated based on the
estimated amount of future bonus payment to directors.

i. Reserve for directors’ retirement benefits

A reserve for directors’ retirement benefits is provided in the amount
accrued during the year, which is calculated based on the estimated
amount of future retirement payments to directors.

j. Reserve for stock payments of board incentive plan

A reserve for stock payments of board incentive plan is provided for the
expected stock payments due to points assigned to directors based on
the stock incentive plan, in order to prepare for the delivery of the
Bank’s stock through the board incentive BIP trust.

k. Reserve for losses on dormant deposit repayments

A reserve for losses on dormant deposit repayments which are derecog-
nized as liabilities is provided for the possible losses on the future
claims of repayments based on the historical repayments experience.

I. Reserve for losses on contingencies

A reserve for losses on contingencies is provided for future estimated
payments to the Credit Guarantee Corporations.
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m. Reserve for point service program

A reserve for point service program relating to the points awarded by
the use of credit cards issued by consolidated subsidiaries is provided
in the amount deemed necessary based on the reasonable estimate of
expected future use of the points in order to prepare for the costs in
the event of future use.

n. Reserve for loss due to returning interests

A reserve for loss due to returning interests is provided for the possible
losses on the future claims of returning interests.

0. Employees’ retirement benefits

For the calculation of employees’ retirement benefit obligation, the
estimated amount of employees' retirement benefits is attributed to
each period by the straight-line method.

Prior service cost is amortized as incurred, by the straight-line method
over a period (5years) which falls within the average remaining years
of service of the active participants in the plans.

Actuarial gain and loss are amortized in the year following the year in
which the gain or loss is recognized, by the straight-line method over a
period (5years) which falls within the average remaining years of
service of the active participants in the plans.

Also, certain consolidated subsidiaries calculate the net defined
benefit liability and retirement benefit cost using the simplified method
which assumes the retirement benefit obligation to be equal to the
necessary payments of the voluntary retirement for all employees at
the fiscal year-end.

p. Foreign currency translation

Foreign-currency-denominated assets and liabilities are translated into
yen equivalents at the exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet
date.

q. Hedge accounting

1.Interest rate risk hedges
The Bank uses deferral hedges described in "Accounting and
auditing for the application of financial instrument accounting
standards in banking" (Japanese Institute of Certified Public Accoun-
tants, Industry Audit Committee Report No. 24 February 13, 2002,
referred to as Report No. 24 of the Industry Audit Committee) to
hedge interest rate risks generated by the Bank's financial assets
and liabilities. The effectiveness of hedges to offset market fluctua-
tions is assessed for each hedged item (for example, deposits and
loans) and its hedging instrument (such as interest rate swaps).
Concerning hedges to fix the cash flow, the Bank identifies hedged
items by grouping them based on interest rate indexes and on
interest rate revision periods in accordance with Report No. 24 of
the Industry Audit Committee, and specifies interest rate swaps as
hedging instruments. The Bank specifies hedges in such a way that
the major conditions of hedged items and hedging instruments are
almost the same, so we believe that our hedges are highly effective.
The Bank applies the exceptional method for interest rate swaps to
certain assets and liabilities.

2.Exchange rate fluctuation risk hedges
The hedge we use against exchange rate fluctuation risks, which are
generated by our financial assets and liabilities in foreign currencies,
is the deferral hedge described in "Accounting and auditing for
transactions in foreign currencies, etc., in banking" (Japanese
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, Industry Audit Committee
Report No. 25 July 29, 2002, referred to as Report No. 25 of the
Industry Audit Committee). We assess the effectiveness of the hedge
by regarding currency swaps and foreign exchange swaps, which are
conducted to reduce or eliminate exchange rate fluctuation risks
generated by monetary claims and liabilities in foreign currencies,
etc., as hedging instruments and by checking whether or not we
have appropriate foreign currency positions for the hedging
instruments to meet the hedged items (monetary claims and
liabilities in foreign currencies, etc.).

r. Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of reporting cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
consist of cash and due from the Bank of Japan.

s. Consumption tax and regional consumption tax

With respect to the Bank and the domestic consolidated subsidiaries,
all amounts in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet are
recorded exclusive of consumption tax and regional consumption tax.

t. Finance leases

The criteria used is to record sales and cost of sales at the time of the
receipt of lease payments.

u. Accounting standards issued but not yet effective

«“Accounting Standard for Revenue Recognition” (ASBJ Statement
No.29; March 30, 2018)

-“Implementation Guidance on Accounting Standard for Revenue
Recognition” (ASBJ Guidance No.30; March 30, 2018)

1.0verview
These are comprehensive standards relating to revenue recognition.
Revenue is recognized by applying the following 5 steps:
Step 1: Identify each contract with clients.
Step 2: Identify the performance obligations of each contract.
Step 3: Calculate the transaction price.
Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the contractual performance
obligations.
Step 5: Recognize revenue as performance obligations are completed.

2.Scheduled date of adoption
The Bank expects to adopt these revised standards from the
beginning of the fiscal year ending March 31, 2022.

3.Impact of adopting revised standards
The Bank is currently evaluating the effect of adopting these revised
standards on its consolidated financial statements.

v. Additional Information

Yamagata Bank has implemented a BIP (Board Incentive Plan) trust
for directors using the trust framework to grant Bank stock as director
compensation, with the aim to motivate directors to more commit to
the medium - to long - term contribution to the Bank’s corporate value
and improvement of the Bank’s business performance.
1.Summary of the Transaction
Pursuant to the Stock Grant Rules of the Bank, points are allotted to
each director based upon level of achievement of business perfor-
mance goals each fiscal year and based upon individual position,
and the Bank stock and the money equivalent to the converted value
of the Bank stock based on the points are granted and delivered
through the trust at the time of leaving the Bank.
2.Matters regarding the Bank stock held by the Trust
(1)The Bank's stock held by the trust is recorded as treasury stock
as part of shareholder's equity at the trust's book value.
(2)The trust's book value is ¥187 million ($1,760 thousand).
(8)The number of the Bank stocks held by the trust at the end of the
fiscal year was 88 thousand shares.

4.Stock or Contributed Capital of
Non-Consolidated Subsidiaries and
Affiliated Companies

Stock or contributed capital of non-consolidated subsidiaries and
affiliated companies totaled ¥939 million ($8,838 thousand) and ¥
990 million at March 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

5.Government Bonds with Lending
Agreements

The “securities” include government bonds lent through unsecured
lending agreements. Their amount totaled ¥62,497 million
($588,262 thousand) and ¥63,484 million at March 31, 2018 and
2017, respectively.

6. Loans and Bills Discounted

(i) Loans to borrowers under bankruptcy procedures and delinquent
loans totaled ¥1,701 million ($16,010 thousand) and ¥14,222
million ($133,866 thousand), respectively, at March 31, 2018, and ¥
582 million and ¥14,040 million, respectively, at March 31, 2017. A
loan is placed on non-accrual status when substantial doubt as to the
collectibility of its principal and interest is judged to exist, if payment is
past due for a certain period of time, or for other reasons.

Loans to borrowers in bankruptcy represent non-accrual loans, after the
charge-offs of loans deemed uncollectible, to borrowers who are legally
bankrupt as defined in Article 96, Paragraph 1, Subparagraphs 3 and 4

of Enforcement Ordinance of the Corporation Income Tax Law.
Delinquent loans are non-accrual loans other than loans to borrowers in
bankruptcy or loans on which interest payments have been deferred in
order to assist the restructuring of the borrowers.

(i) Loans past due for 3 months or more totaled ¥30 million ($282
thousand) and ¥23 million at March 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.
Loans past due for 3 months or more are those whose principal or
interest payments are 3 months or more past due but are not included
in loans to borrower under bankruptcy procedures or delinquent loans.

(i) Restructured loans totaled ¥4,953 million ($46,620 thousand)
and ¥3,697 million at March 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.
Restructured loans are those on which the Bank has granted certain
concessions, such as a reduction of the contractual interest rate or
principal amount or a deferral of interest/principal payments, in order to
assist the restructuring of the borrowers. Restructured loans are not
included in loans to borrowers under bankruptcy procedures, other
non-accrual loans, and loans past due for 3 months or more.

(iv) The total of loans to borrowers under bankruptcy procedures, other
non-accrual loans, loans past due for 3 months or more and restructured
loans amounted to ¥20,908 million ($196,799 thousand) and ¥18,343
million at March 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

(v) Bills discounted are accounted for as financial transactions
in accordance with "Treatment of Accounting and Auditing in Applying
Accounting Standard for Financial Instruments in the Banking Industry"
issued by the JICPA Industry Audit Committee Report No.24 issued on
February 13, 2002. The Bank has rights to sell or pledge accepted
banker's acceptance bills, commercial bills discounted, documentary
bills and foreign exchange bought without restrictions. The face value of
banker's acceptance bills, commercial bills, documentary bills acquired
at discount and foreign exchange bought at a discount was ¥7,184
million ($67,620 thousand) and ¥7,432 million as of March 31, 2018
and 2017, respectively.

(vi) Overdraft protection on current accounts and contracts for loan
commitments are agreements under which the Bank and the consolidat-
ed subsidiaries are bound to extend loans up to a prearranged amount,
at the request of the customer, unless the customer is in breach of
contract. The unutilized balance of such contracts amounted to
¥573,831 million ($5,401,270 thousand) and ¥567,645 million as of
March 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, in which the balance of
contracts that have a term of one year or less are unconditionally
cancelable at any time were ¥549,919 million ($5,176,195 thousand)
and ¥548,801 million as of March 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.
Since many of these contracts are scheduled to expire without the
rights having been exercised, any unutilized balance in itself does not
necessarily affect the future cash flows of the Bank or its consolidated
subsidiaries. A provision is included in many of these contracts which
entitles the Bank and the consolidated subsidiaries to refuse the execu-
tion of such loans, or to reduce the maximum amount loaned under such
contracts when there is a change in the borrowers' financial situation, or
when there is the necessity to secure a claim, or when other similar
factors arise. In addition, the Bank and its consolidated subsidiaries
obtain, if needed, real estate or securities as collateral at the time when
the contracts are entered into and they subsequently monitor the
borrowers' financial condition periodically based on, and in accordance
with, the procedures established. If deemed necessary, specific
measures such as amendments to the contracts are undertaken in order
to control the credit risk.

7. Assets Pledged

Pledged assets and liabilities related to pledged assets as of March 31,
2018 and 2017 were summarized as follows:

2018 2017 2018

(Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S.dollars)

Pledged assets:
Securities ¥ 157,288 ¥ 178,096 $ 1,480,496

Liabilities related to the above pledged assets:
Deposits 12,871 ¥ 14187 $ 121,150
Payables under securities lending transactions ¥ 26,536 ¥ 45,126 $§ 249,774
Borrowed money ¥ 50811 ¥ 50,116 $ 478,266

+«

In addition, securities totaling ¥16,744 million ($157,605 thousand) and
¥31,837 million were pledged as collateral for settlement of exchange and
futures transactions at March 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

Deposits included in other assets as of March 31, 2018 and 2017 were
¥284 million ($2,673 thousand) and ¥300 million, respectively.

Initial margins of central counterparty included in other assets as of March
31, 2018 and 2017 were ¥15,000 million ($141,189 thousand) and zero,
respectively.

8. Revaluation of Land

Pursuant to the "Law Concerning the Revaluation of Land" (the "Law"), land used
for the Bank's business operations was revalued on March 31, 2002. The excess
of the revalued aggregate market value over the total book value (carrying amount)
before revaluation was included in net assets at an amount net of the related tax
effect at March 31, 2002. The corresponding income taxes were included in
liabilities at March 31, 2002 as deferred taxes liability on revalued land.

The revaluation of the land was determined based on two method, the official prices
published by the Commissioner of the National Tax Authority in accordance with
Article 2, Paragraph 4 of the "Enforcement Ordinance Concerning Land Revaluation,”
with certain necessary adjustments, and the appraisal by Real estate appraiser.

The difference between the total fair value of land for business operation
purposes, which was revalued in accordance with Article 10 of the above-men-
tioned law, and the total book value of the land after the revaluation was ¥3,734
million ($35,146 thousand) and ¥3,860 million at March 31, 2018 and 2017.

9. Accumulated Depreciation

Accumulated depreciation totaled ¥25,479 million ($239,824 thousand)
and ¥25,812 million at March 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

10.Recorded Reduction in Value
of Tangible Fixed Assets

The recorded reduction in value of tangible fixed assets was ¥ 2,044 million
($19,239 thousand) and ¥2,050 million at March 31, 2018 and 2017,
respectively. During the current consolidated fiscal year there were no new
tangible fixed assets for which the book value was reduced in value.

11.Guarantee Obligations in Respect
of the Corporate Bonds

Among the corporate bonds included in the “securities” , the guarantee
obligations in respect of the corporate bonds pursuant to private offering
securities (Article 2, paragraph 3 of the Financial Instruments and
Exchange Act) was ¥9,287 million ($87,415 thousand) and ¥9,127
million at March 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

12.0ther Income

Other income includes profit from sale of stock, etc. of ¥2,557 million
($24,068 thousand) and ¥2,750 million at March 31, 2018 and 2017,
respectively.

13.General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses include salary and benefits of ¥ 9,946
million ($93,618 thousand) and ¥ 10,153 million, and outsourcing costs of
¥2,041 million ($19,211 thousand) and ¥2,253 million at March 31,
2018 and 2017, respectively.

14.Loss on Impairment

The Bank reviewed its long-lived assets by grouping into the units consisting
of operating branches, idle assets, jointly used assets including head office,
administrative centers, company housing and dormitories and each consoli-
dated subsidiary for impairment and recognized loss on impairment of land
in the amount of ¥72 million ($677 thousand) and zero for the year
ended March 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. The recoverable amount
used for measurement of loss on impairment was net selling price and
computed mainly based on the real estate appraisal value.
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15. Other Comprehensive Income

Reclassification adjustments and tax effects allocated to other compre-
hensive income for the year ended March 31, 2018 and 2017 are

summarized as follows:
2018 2017 2018

(Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.8.dollars)

Net unrealized holding gain on securities available for sale:
Amount arising during the year ¥ 2,518 ¥ (5061) $ 23,701

Reclassification adjustments (2,724) (2,680) (25,640)
Amount before tax effect (206) (7,741) (1,939)
Tax effect 35 2,443 329
Net unrealized holding gain on securities available for sale: (170) (5,297) (1,600)
Deferred gain (loss) on hedging instruments:
Amount arising during the year (360) 187 (3,388)
Reclassification adjustments 927 1,038 8,725
Amount before tax effect 567 1,226 5,336
Tax effect (172) (374) (1,618)
Deferred gain (loss) on hedging instruments 394 852 3,708

Revaluation of land:
Amount arising during the year - - -
Reclassification adjustments - — -
Amount before tax effect - - -
Tax effect - - -
Revaluation of land - - -
Retirement benefits liability adjustments:

Amount arising during the year (211) 676 (1,986)
Reclassification adjustments 17 167 160
Amount before tax effect (194) 843 (1,826)
Tax effect 59 (257) 555
Retirement bengfits liability adjustments (134) 586 (1,261)
Total other comprehensive income ¥ 89 ¥ (3859 $ 837

16. Stocks Issued

The number of stocks issued and changes during the year ended March 31,
2018 and 2017 are summarized as follows:

Thousands of stocks Thousands of stocks

2018 2017

Treasury stock ~ Commonstockissued ~ Treasury stock ~ Common stock issued

Beginning of the year 7,022 170,000 6,563 170,000
Increase during the year 81 - 4586 -
Decrease during the year 5,624*2 136,000 — -
End of the year 1,406:3 34,0004 7,022 170,000

*1 The number of increase in treasury stock of 8 thousand, which are common stocks, was
increased by 6 thousand due to the purchase of fractional numbers of less than one unit
before the stock consolidation, increased by 1 thousand due to the purchase of fractional
stock in connection with the stock consolidation, and increased by O thousand due to the
purchase of fractional numbers of less than one unit after the stock consolidation.

*2 The number of decrease in treasury stock of 5,624 thousand, which are common stocks,
was decreased by 7 thousand due to the delivery of the Bank’s stock from the board
incentive BIP trust conducted before the stock consolidation, decreased by O thousand in
response to request to purchase of fractional numbers of less than one unit, decreased by
5,616 thousand resulting from the stock consolidation, and decreased by O thousand
through the disposition of fractional numbers of less than one unit in connection with the
stock consolidation.

*3 The number of treasury stock as of the end of the consolidated fiscal year includes 88
thousand of the Bank’s stock held by the board incentive BIP trust.

*4 Effective on October 1, 2017 the Bank executed the 1-for-5 stock consolidation.

*5 The decrease of 136,000 thousand stocks of issued and outstanding common stocks is a
result of the stock consolidation.

*6 The number of treasury stock as of the end of the consolidated fiscal year includes 450
thousand of the Bank's stock held by the board incentive BIP trust. The number of
increase in treasury stock of 458 thousand, which are common stocks, was increased by
450 thousand due to the purchase of own stocks by the board incentive BIP trust and
increased by 8 thousand due to the purchase of fractional numbers of less than one unit.

17. Dividends

Dividends for the year ended March 31, 2018 and 2017 are summarized as

follows:
2018
November 10, 2017

Resolution by the
board of directors

Total dividends ¥ 571 million  $ 5,374 thousand ¥ 571 million ~ § 5,374 thousand

May 12, 2017

Resolution by the
board of directors

Dividend per stock ¥ 35§ 0.03 ¥ 35§ 0.03

Base date September 30, 2017 September 30, 2017 March 31, 2017 March 31, 2017

Effective date December 6, 2017 December 6, 2017 June 5, 2017 June 5, 2017
2017

November 11, 2016

Resolution by the
board of directors

June 23, 2016

Resolution by the general
shareholders' meeting

Total dividends ¥ 572 million ¥ 653 million
Dividend per stock ¥ 3.5 ¥ 4.0
Base date September 30, 2016 March 31, 2016

Effective date

December 9, 2016 June 24, 2016

Dividend of which base date belonged to the year ended March 31, 2018
and 2017 but to be effective in the following year is summarized as follows:

2018 2017
May 11, 2018 May 12, 2017
Resolution by the boad of diretors Resolution by the board of directors
Total dividends ¥ 571 million  § 5,374 thousand ¥ 571 million
Dividend per stock ¥ 175  § 0.16 ¥ 35
Base date March 31, 2018 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Effective date June 4, 2018 June 4, 2018 June 5, 2017

Total dividends above mentioned include 1 million yen for the stocks held by
the board incentive BIP trust.

Dividend per stock pursuant to the November 10, 2017 director's resolution
is based on the record date of September 30, 2017 and does not reflect the
stock consolidation of October 1, 2017.

Since the stock consolidation was conducted on October 1, 2017, the dividend
amount per stock specifies the amount per stock following the consolidated
stock, taking into account the effect of the stock consolidation.

18. Cash Flows

Cash and cash equivalents stated in the consolidated statement of cash
flows consisted of the following:

2018 2017 2018

(Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S.dollars)

Cash and due from banks ¥ 82,343  ¥153,056 $ 775,065
Current deposits (92) (134) (865)
Ordinary deposits (309) (393) (2,908)
Time deposits (5,000) (3,000) (47,063)
Deposits with Japan Post Bank (169) (99) (1,590)
Others @ (7) (65)

Cash and cash equivalents ¥ 76,764 ¥149,420 $ 722,552

19. Leases

(As lessee)
1.Finance Lease transaction
(1)Finance lease transactions that do not transfer ownership.

(DDescription of lease asset

Tangible fixed assets
Primarily, a portion of vehicles and electronic computers.

(@Method of depreciation of lease assets
As stated in the “f. Leased assets” of “3. summary of significant Accounting
Policies”.

(As lessor)
Investments in leased assets at March 31, 2018 and 2017 are summarized as follows:

2018 2017 2018

(Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S.dollars)

Gross lease receivables ¥ 13,627 ¥ 12,093 $ 128,266
Estimated residual values 873 735 8,217
Unearned interest income (1,897) (1,678) (17,855)

Investments in leased assets ¥ 12,603 ¥ 11,149 $ 118,627

Maturities of lease receivables at March 31, 2018 are as follows:
Years ending March 31 (Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S.dollars)

2019 ¥ 4,103 $ 38,620
2020 3,376 31,777
2021 2,541 23,917
2022 1,715 16,142
2023 953 8,970
2024 and thereafter 936 8,810

Maturities of lease receivables at March 31, 2017 are as follows:
Years ending March 31 (Millions of yen)

2018 ¥ 3,755
2019 3,026
2020 2,345
2021 1,558
2022 790
2023 and thereafter 616

20. Financial Instruments

1. Matters relating to the state of financial instruments
(1) Policy for financial instruments

The Yamagata Bank group (referred to as the “Bank” below)
provides financial services mainly connected with the banking
business including deposits, loans, buying and selling trading
securities and security investments. In the banking business, which
is the main business of the Bank, funds are raised by means such as
accepting deposits and borrowing money from the call money
market, and are invested by providing loans and buying securities.
Financial assets and liabilities are susceptible to interest rate
fluctuations, so the Bank bears market risk, which is the risk of loss
caused by changes in financial market conditions (for example,
interest rate risk and price fluctuation risk), and the risk of failing to
raise sufficient funds.

The Bank performs comprehensive asset and liability management
(ALM) to appropriately control the balance of profit and risk in a way
that suits fund raising and investment policy as well as taking into
consideration the state of assets and liabilities and the trends of the
financial and capital markets. The Bank uses derivatives as part of
such management.

(2) Nature and risk of financial instruments

The Bank's financial assets consist mainly of loans to domestic
companies and individuals, and the Bank is exposed to the credit
risks arising from customers' default on their loans. Securities mainly
consist of stocks, bonds and investment trusts, some of which are
held until the maturity date, others are held for purposes such as
investment and business promotion. Those securities are exposed to
credit risk of the relevant issuer, the risks of fluctuations in interest
rates and market prices.

Deposits, call money, etc., that are financial liabilities have interest
rate fluctuation risks caused by differences in interest rates and the
periods between financial liabilities and financial assets. Financial
liabilities also have the funding risk of loss due to inability to raise
funds, because of reasons such as unexpected outflow of funds, and
by raising funds at interest rates much higher than the normal rate
because of unavoidable reasons; and the market liquidity risk of loss
caused by the inability to raise the required funds because of
disruption such as a credit crunch in the entire market and by
trading at prices greatly disadvantageous compared with the normal
price.

(3) Risk management for financial instruments
i. Credit risk management

The Bank measures the risk amount through credit judgments,
credit ratings and self-assessments, attaching importance to the
public good, safety, growth potential and profitability, and controls
the risk on the principle of elimination of concentration on specific
customers, in accordance with credit policy (lending standards),
which states the basic ideas about lending, the code of conduct
and other matters, and with the credit risk management rules,
which specify credit risk management methods.

The Bank's credit review division and sales promotion division are
separated to ensure independence of each other and stringent

credit risk management.

The Bank conducts rigorous self-assessment, which includes

audits by the audit division, from the aspect of securing the

soundness of the assets. Based on the results, the Bank appropri-

ately writes off bad debts and sets aside reserves.

The Bank has a credit rating system for business loans to

understand the true state of companies from both guantitative and

qualitative aspects.

To reduce and offset credit risk, the Bank receives collateral and

guarantees for lending transactions and offsets loans against

deposits. The basic ideas about security are stated in the credit

policy, and security assessments, management policies and

procedures are set out in the operation manual.

Measurement method and procedures for credit risk amount are

stipulated in the operation manual and the risk is measured

monthly based on the borrowers' credit rating and other factors.

The results are reported to the ALM Council (the board of

managing directors).

ii.Market risk management

a.Interest rate risk management
The Bank's interest rate fluctuation risk is managed by ALM.
Risk management methodology and procedures are stated in
detail in the rules and manuals related to ALM. Present
conditions are checked, state of execution is checked and future
actions are discussed by the ALM Council, based on the
outcome of the deliberations of the ALM Committee.
Risks are monitored using methodology such as basis point
value (BPV) and value at risk (VaR), and mainly with gap
analyses and interest rate sensitivity analyses, and the results
are reported monthly to the ALM Council. As part of ALM,
derivatives such as interest rate swap transactions are
conducted to hedge interest rate risks.

b.Price fluctuation risk management
Trading and management of investment instruments such as
securities are performed in accordance with the investment
policy and risk management policy as determined by the board
of directors half-yearly. The middle section of the Financial
Market Division and the Risk Control Section of the General
Planning & Coordinations Division measure market risk for
securities investments quantitatively and comprehensively using
VaR, etc. The results are reported to the relevant directors, the
ALM Council, etc., with the frequency set for each financial
instrument to check the state of compliance with the rule.

c.Quantitative information concerning market risk
The principal financial instruments that are subject to interest rate
risk and price fluctuation risk, which are the main risk variables
affecting the Bank, are loans and bills discounted, securities,
deposits and derivatives transactions.
The variance-covariance method (holding period: 90 days*,
confidence interval: 99%, observation period: 250 business days)
was used for the calculation of VaR, the market risk volume. The
volume of overall market risk (estimated loss) as of March 31,
2018 (consolidated accounts settlement date) and 2017 were
¥ 26,579 million ($250,178 thousand) and ¥ 26,173 million.
The Bank believes that the measurement model estimates market
risk with sufficient accuracy because the Bank examines the
model by means such as performing backtesting to compare the
VaR calculated using the model with the actual profit and loss.
However, VaR measures market risk volume with a certain
probability that is calculated statistically based on historical
market movements, and therefore VaR may fail to represent risk in
the case of exceptionally drastic change in market conditions.
* Holding period for shares purchased for the business relation-

ship, which are included in the securities: 125 days.
iii.Liquidity risk management

Sections managing liquidity risks at the Bank are clearly stated in

the liquidity risk management rule that stipulate the liquidity risk

management procedures, system and so on. The Bank has a

management system to secure sufficient liquidity in case of

unexpected events by setting liquidity standards for various cases

including times of normality, times of concern, and times of

emergency.

(4) Supplementary explanation of fair values, of financial instruments

Fair value of financial instruments includes market price as well as
reasonably determined value where market price is unavailable.The
reasonably determined value could differ depending on different
conditions and assumptions because calculation of such value is
conducted based on certain conditions and assumptions.
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2. Fair value of financial instruments

Carrying amount and fair value, as of March 31, 2018 and 2017, and the
difference between the values are shown in the table below. Unlisted
stocks and others whose fair value is deemed to be extremely difficult to
determine are not listed in the table (see Note 2). Accounts considered to

be immaterial are omitted.

<March 31, 2018>

(Millions of yen)

Carrying amount Fair Value Difference
(1) Cash and due from banks | ¥ 82,343 |¥ 82,343 |¥ —
(2) Securities
Held-to-maturity bonds 9,287 9,402 114
Other securities 713,214 713,214 -
(3) Loans and bills discounted | 1,726,334
Reserve for possible
loan losses (*1) (7,133)
1,719,201 1,738,863 19,661
Total assets 2,524,046 [2,543,822 19,775
(1) Deposits 2,206,819 [2,206,872 53
(2) Negotiable certificates of deposit | 114,497 114,497 0
(3) Payables under securities 26,536 26,536 -
leading transactions
(4) Borrowed money 54,245 54,265 19
(5) Bonds with stock acquisition rights 10,624 10,641 17
Total liabilities 2,412,722 12,412,812 90
Derivatives transactions (*2)
To which hedge accounting is not applied 11 11 -
To which hedge accounting is applied (3,146) (3,146) —
Total derivatives ¥ (3,135) | ¥ (3,135) [¥ —

<March 31, 2018>

(Thousands of U.S. dollars)

Carrying amount Fair Value Difference
(1) Cash and due from banks |$ 775065 |$ 775065 |$ -
(2) Securities
Held-to-maturity bonds 87,415 88,497 1,073
Other securities 6,713,234 6,713,234 —
(3) Loans and bills discounted | 16,249,378
Reserve for possible
loan losses (*1) (67,140)
16,182,238 | 16,367,309 185,062
Total assets 23,757,963 | 23,944,107 | 186,135
(1) Deposits 20,772,016 | 20,722,515 498
(2) Negotiable certificates of deposit | 1,077,720 1,077,720 0
(3) Payables under securities 249,774 249,774 -
leading transactions
(4) Borrowed money 510,589 510,777 178
(5) Bonds with stock acquisition rights 100,000 100,160 160
Total liabilities 22,710,109 | 22,710,956 847
Derivatives transactions (*2)
To which hedge accounting is not applied 103 103 -
To which hedge accounting is applied (29,612) (29,612) -
Total derivatives $ (29508) |$ (29,508) | $ —

(*1) General reserve and specific reserve for possible loan losses correspond-

ing to loans and bills discounted are deducted.

(*2) Derivative transactions recorded in other assets and other liabilities are

presented on a net basis.
<March 31, 2017>

(Millions of yen)

Carrying amount Fair Value Difference
(1) Cash and due from banks | ¥ 153,056 |¥153,056 |¥ —
(2) Securities
Held-to-maturity bonds 9,127 9,289 162
Other securities 699,830 699,830 —
(3) Loans and bills discounted | 1,674,250
Reserve for possible
loan losses (*1) (6,563)
1,667,687 (1,689,417 21,730
Total assets 2,529,701 2,551,594 21,892
(1) Deposits 2,180,460 |2,180,615 154
(2) Negotiable certificates of deposit | 115,701 115,701 0
(3) Payables under securities 45,126 45,126 -
leading transactions
(4) Borrowed money 53,245 53,211 (34)
(5) Bonds with stock acquisition rights 11,219 11,417 198
Total liabilities 2,405,754 |2,406,073 318
Derivatives transactions (*2)
To which hedge accounting is not applied (38) (38) -
To which hedge accounting is applied (3,538) (3,538) —
Total derivatives ¥ (3577) |¥ (3,577) |¥ —

Note 1 Method to calculate fair values of financial instruments

Assets

(1) Cash and due from banks
Concerning due from banks without maturity, the carrying amount is
reported as fair value because the fair value is approximately the same as
the carrying amount. Concerning due from banks with maturity, the
carrying amount is reported as fair value because the remaining periods
are as short as less than one year, and the fair value is approximately the
same as the carrying amount.

(2) Securities
Fair value of stocks is determined based on the exchange price, and that
of bonds based on the exchange price or price quoted by the counter party
financial institutions. Fair value of investment trusts is determined based
on the price publicly available. Fair value of privately placed guaranteed
bonds is calculated by discounting the total amount of principal and
interest at an interest rate deemed to be applicable to similar bonds by
categories based on internal ratings and terms of the bonds.

(3) Loans and bills discounted
Fair value of loans and bills discounted is calculated by categorizing the
loans based on the type, internal rating, term (the remaining period or the
period between interest rate renewals), and then discounting the total of the
principals and interest with a rate expected of a new similar loan. For loans
with short remaining periods (less than one year), the carrying amount is
reported as the fair value because the fair value is approximately the same as
the carrying amount.
For receivables from “legally bankrupt”, “virtually bankrupt” and “possibly
bankrupt” borrowers, possible loan losses are estimated based on factors
such as present value of expected future cash flow and expected amounts
to be collected from collateral and guarantees. Since the fair value of these
items approximates the carrying amount net of the currently expected loan
losses at the end of the year, such carrying amount is presented as fair value.
Concerning loans whose maturity dates were not set because they were
limited to within the values of the collateral offered as security, the
carrying amount is reported as fair value because the fair value is expect-
ed to be approximately the same as the carrying amount considering
expected periods of repayments and the terms of interest rate.

Liabilities

(1) Deposits, and (2) negotiable certificates of deposit
Concerning demand deposits, the amounts to be paid if such deposits
were withdrawn on the end of the year (book values) are regarded as fair
value. Time deposits are separated by period, and the present value is
calculated by discounting the future cash flow. The discount rate is the
rate used for new deposit-taking. For those with short remaining periods
(less than one year), their carrying amount is reported as the fair value
because the fair value is approximately the same as the carrying amount.
(3) Payables under securities lending transactions.
The carrying amount is reported as fair value for payables under securities
lending transactions because they have short maturity (less than one
year), and the fair value is approximately the same as the carrying amount.
(4) Borrowed money
Fair value of borrowed money is calculated by discounting the total
amount of the principal and interest of such borrowed money classified by
the type, and the remaining period at the interest rates considered to be
applicable to new similar borrowed money. The fair value of short-term
borrowed money with remaining period as of the end of the fiscal year not
exceeding one year is based on the carrying amount because the fair
value is approximately the same as the carrying amount.
(5) Bonds with stock acquisition rights
Fair value for bonds with stock acquisition rights is determined based on
the exchange price.

Derivative transactions
Matters related to derivatives transactions are as stated in the Note 23 "Fair
Value Information on Derivatives".

Note 2 Financial instruments whose fair value is deemed to be extremely
difficult to determine were as follows. These were not included in the
Asset, "(2) Securities" in "Fair value of financial instruments".

Carrying amount
Category 2018 2017 2018
(Millions of yen) | (Millions of yen) |(Thousands of U.S. dollars)
Unlisted stocks (*1)(*2) ¥ 1,590 | ¥ 159 | $ 14,966
Investment in partnerships (*3) and others 8,903 7,004 83,800
Total ¥ 10,493 | ¥ 8595 | § 98,766

(*1) Unlisted stocks are not subject to fair value disclosure because of the
extreme difficulty in determining their fair values as they are not sold in
the market.

(*2) Impairment accounting was applied to unlisted stocks of ¥ 14 million in
the previous consolidated fiscal year.

Impairment accounting was applied to unlisted stocks of ¥2 million
($18 thousand) in this consolidated fiscal year.

(*3) In the case that partnership assets consist of unlisted stocks whose fair
value is deemed to be extremely difficult to determine, investment in
partnerships is not subject to fair value disclosure.

Note 3 Scheduled redemption amounts of financial assets and securities with maturities

<March 31, 2018>

(Millions of yen)

Due in Due after Due after Due after Due after Due after
1 year or less 1 year through 3 years through 5 years through 7 years through 10 years
3 years 5 years 7 years 10 years

Due from banks ¥ 82,343 | ¥ —| ¥ —| ¥ —| ¥ —| ¥ —
Securities 109,143 169,307 121,673 96,361 88,696 68,554
Held-to-maturity bonds 1,828 3,914 2,967 577 — —
Corporate bonds 1,828 3,914 2,967 577 — —
Other securities with a maturity date 107,314 165,393 118,706 95,784 88,696 68,554
Japanese government bonds 36,423 97,799 42,428 41,682 8,255 32,916
Municipal bonds 36,120 10,357 25,333 12,250 19,297 21,603
Corporate bonds 16,868 36,989 30,752 24,330 15,252 —
Other 17,901 20,247 20,192 17,520 45,890 14,035
Loans and bills discounted (*) 403,781 323,922 252,227 164,436 158,122 407,256
Total ¥ 595,267 | ¥ 493,230 | ¥ 373,901 | ¥ 260,798 | ¥ 246,818 | ¥ 475,810

* Of loans and bills discounted, the portion whose timing of collection is unforeseeable, such as loan to “Legally bankrupt” borrowers, loan to

borrowers, loan to “Possibly bankrupt” borrowers, amounting to ¥ 16,587 million ($ 156,127 thousand) is not included in the above table.

<March 31, 2018 >

“Virtually bankrupt”

(Thousands of U.S.dollars)

Due in Due after Due after Due after Due after Due after
1 year or less 1 year through 3 years through 5 years through 7 years through 10 years
3 years 5 years 7 years 10 years
Due from banks $ 775,065 | $ —1$ - $ Nk -1 $ -
Securities 1,027,324 1,593,627 1,145,265 907,012 834,864 645,274
Held-to-maturity bonds 17,206 36,841 27,927 5,431 - -
Corporate bonds 17,206 36,841 27,927 5,431 — -
Other securities with a maturity date 1,010,109 1,556,786 1,117,338 901,581 834,864 645,274
Japanese government bonds 342,836 920,547 399,359 392,338 77,701 309,826
Municipal bonds 339,984 97,486 238,450 115,304 181,635 203,341
Corporate bonds 158,772 348,164 289,457 229,009 143,561 -
Other 168,495 190,577 190,060 164,909 431,946 132,106
Loans and bills discounted 3,800,649 3,048,964 2,374,124 1,547,778 1,488,347 3,833,358
Total $ 5,603,040 | $ 4,642,601 | $ 3,519,399 | $ 2,454,800 | $ 2323211 $ 4,478,633
<March 31, 2017> (Millions of yen)
1 yEal:eo:r}ess 1 3I/3~:->L;er ?rﬁg[;gh 3 yggrz ?r?r?)rugh 5 yggresat‘gre;ugh 7 ygel;res ?rfl:iijgh ?Beyzgresr
3 years 5 years 7 years 10 years

Due from banks ¥ 153,056 | ¥ —| ¥ —| ¥ —| ¥ —| ¥ =
Securities 72,915 239,009 95,789 89,180 87,986 66,035
Held-to-maturity bonds 1,786 3,562 2,838 939 — —
Corporate bonds 1,786 3,562 2,838 939 — —
Other securities with a maturity date 71,128 235,446 92,951 88,240 87,986 66,035
Japanese government bonds 34,244 110,091 43,364 50,301 23,234 32,114
Municipal bonds 6,811 47,381 7,931 4,415 10,157 21,715
Corporate bonds 18,473 44,163 28,478 14,675 14,753 —
Other 11,598 33,810 13,176 18,847 39,841 12,206
Loans and bills discounted (*) 391,552 326,267 255,110 156,391 162,614 365,378
Total ¥ 617,525 | ¥ 565,277 | ¥ 350,899 | ¥ 245571 | ¥ 250,601 | ¥ 431,414

* Of loans and bills discounted, the portion whose timing of collection is unforeseeable, such as loan to “Legally bankrupt” borrowers, loan to “Virtually bankrupt”
borrowers, loan to “Possibly bankrupt” borrowers, amounting to ¥ 16,934 million is not included in the above table.

Note 4 Scheduled repayment amounts of bonds, borrowed money and other interest bearing liabilities

<March 31, 2018>

(Millions of yen)

Due in Due after Due after Due after Due after Due after
1 year or less 1 year through 3 years through 5 years through 7 years through 10 years
3 years 5 years 7 years 10 years

Deposits (*) ¥ 2,066,726 | ¥ 126,655 | ¥ 13,436 | ¥ —| ¥ —| ¥ -
Negotiable certificates of deposit 114,277 220 - - - -
Payable under securities lending transactions 26,536 = - - - -
Borrowed money 51,980 1,645 597 11 9 -
Bonds with stock acquisition right - 10,624 - - — -
Total ¥ 2,259,520 | ¥ 139,145 | ¥ 14,034 | ¥ 11| ¥ 9| ¥ -

*Demand deposits are included in “Due in 1 year or less”.
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<March 31, 2018> (Thousands of U.S.dollars)

5 3. Other securities (as of March 31, 2018) (Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S. dollars)
Due in ue after Due after Due after Due after Due after -
1 year through 3 years through 5 years through 7 years through Type Carrying value Cost Difference Carrying value Cost Difference
1 year or less 3 years 5 years 7 years 10 years 10 years §
Y Y Y Y Carrying value Stocks ¥ 37,224 ¥ 18,301 |¥ 18,923 | $ 350,376 $ 172,260 |$ 178,115
Deposits $ 19,453,369 | $ 1,192,159 | $ 126,468 | $ -9 -3 — exceeding cost Bonds 435,108 425,879 9,229 4,095,519 4,008,650 86,869
Negotiable certificates of deposit 1,075,649 2,070 - - - - Japanese government bonds 225,951 220,839 5,111 2,126,797 2,078,680 48,108
Payable under securities lending transactions 249,774 — — — - - Municipal bonds 124,962 121,627 3,335 1,176,223 1,144,832 31,391
Borrowed money 489,269 15,483 5,619 103 84 - Short-term bonds — — — — — —
Bonds with stock acquisition right - 100,000 — — — — Corporate bonds 84,194 83,411 782 792,488 785,118 7,360
Total $ 21,268,072 | $ 1,309,723 | $ 132,097 | $ 103| $ 84| $ — Other 58,067 56,340 1,727 546,564 530,308 16,255
Foreign bonds 29,927 29,716 211 281,692 279,706 1,986
<March 31, 2017> (Millions of yen) Other 28,139 26,624 1,515 264,862 250,602 14,260
e Due after Due after Due after Due after R . _ Subtotal 530,400 500,520 29,879 4,992,469 4,711,219 281,240
; yeaL: 0||' less 1 year through | 3 years through | 5 years through | 7 years through 18ey2 aresr Carrying value not Stocks 3,596 3,924 (328) 33,847 36,935 (3,087)
3 years 5 years 7 years 10 years exceeding cost Bonds 73,552 74,026 (473) 692,319 696,780 (4,452)
Deposits (*) ¥ 2,031,664 | ¥ 139,783 | ¥ 9,013 ¥ —| ¥ —| ¥ - Japanese government bonds 33,554 33,938 (384) 315,832 319,446 (3,614)
Negotiable certificates of deposit 115,671 30 — - - — Municipal bonds — — — _ _ —
Payable under securities lending transactions 45,126 - - - - - Short-term bonds - - - - - -
Borrowed money 51,241 1,467 521 15 — — Corporate bonds 39,998 40,087 (88) 376,487 377,324 (828)
Bonds with stock acquisition right - 11,219 - - — — Other_ 106,078 108,430 (2,352) 998,475 1,020,613 (22,138)
Total v 2243704 | ¥ 152,499 | ¥ 9535 ¥ 15| ¥ "y _ Foreign bonds 49,063 49,939 (875) 461,812 470,058 (8,236)
*Demand deposits are included in "Due in 1 year or less" Other 57,014 58,491 (1,476) 536,652 550,555 (13,893)
' Subtotal 183,227 186,381 (3,153) 1,724,651 1,754,339 (29,678)
Total ¥ 713,628 ¥686,902 | ¥ 26,725 |$§ 6,717,131 $6,465,568 | $ 251,553
21 - Secu rltles Other securities (as of March 31, 2017) (Millions of yen)
Trading securities, marketable securities classified as held-to-maturity bonds and other securities at March 31, 2018 and 2017 are summarized as follows: = o | oo o
ype arrying value 0S| ifference
1.Trading securities i i . . . . Trading securities ) ) . Ca"ym_g value Stocks ¥ 33,568 ¥ 17,252 |¥ 16,316
(as of March 31, 2018) Unrealized holding gain Unrealized holding gain (as of March 31, 2017) Unrealized holding gain exceeding cost Bonds 431,068 420,364 10,704
charged to current charged to current charged to current Japanese government bonds 256,302 250,206 6,095
Spetalions onerations Sporafions Municipal bonds 93,041 89590 | 3,450
(Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S.dollars) (Millions of yen) Short tZrm bonds — — —
s 0 $ 0 hs 0 Corporate bonds 81,724 80,567 | 1,157
Other 76,017 73,478 2,539
) i 966
2. Held-to-maturity bonds (as of March 31, 2018) (Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S. dollars) g(t);:z‘ll’gn bonds g?"s‘zg gg‘ggg 1573
Type Carrying value Fair value Difference Carrying Value Fair value Difference Subtotal 540,655 511,095 29,560
: _ Carrying value not Stocks 2,389 2,557 (167)
Fair value exceeding | Japanese government bonds | ¥ - ¥ - |¥ - |$ - $ - |$ - exceeding cost Bonds 81.240 82291 1.050)
carrying value Municipal bonds - - - - - - Japanese government bonds 37,048 37,868 (820)
Short-term bonds - - — - - - Municipal bonds 5,371 5,409 (37)
Corporate bonds 8,604 8,722 117 80,986 82,097 1,101 Short-term bonds — — —
Other - - - — - - Corporate bonds 38,820 39,012 (192)
Subtotal 8,604 8,722 117 80,986 82,097 1,101 Other 76.602 78.013 (1.410)
Fair value not Japanese government bonds - - - — - — Foreign bonds 36418 36914 496)
exceeding carrying Municipal bonds — — — — — — Other 20184 21098 014
value Short-term bonds - - - - - - Subtotal 160,233 162,862 | (2.628)
Corporate bonds 683 679 (3) 6,428 6,391 (28) Total ¥ 700.888 ¥673.967 | ¥ 26,931
Other — — — — — — ’ ’ y
Subtotal 683 679 (3) 6,428 6,391 (28)
Total ¥ 9,287 ¥ 9,402 |¥ 114 | $ 87,415 $ 88,497 |$ 1,073 4. Held-to-maturity bonds sold during the year ended March 31,2018 (Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S. dollars)
Held-to-maturity bonds (as of March 31, 2017) (Millions of yen) Cost Proceeds from sales Gain(loss) on sales Cost Proceeds from sales Gain(loss) on sales
Corporate bonds ¥ — ¥ — ¥ — $ - $ - $ -
Type Carrying value Fair value Difference Total ¥ — ¥ — ¥ — $ — $ — $ —
Fair value exceeding Japanese government bonds | ¥ — ¥ — | ¥ —
carrying value Municipal bonds — — - ) )
Short-term bonds — — — Held-to-maturity bonds sold during the year ended March 31,2017 (Millions of yen)
Corporate bonds 8,539 8,709 170 Cost Proceeds from sales | Gain(loss) on sales
Other — — — Corporate bonds ¥ 332 ¥ 335 ¥ 3
Subtotal 8,539 8,709 170 Total ¥ 332 ¥ 335 ¥ 3
Fair value not Japanese government bonds — — — The sales are due to redemption of securities.
exceeding carrying Municipal bonds — — -
value Short-term bonds — — —
Corporate bonds 587 579 (7)
Other — — —
Subtotal 587 579 (7)

Total ¥ 9,127 ¥ 9289 |¥ 162




5. Other securities sold during the year ended March 31, 2018

(Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S. dollars)

Proceeds from Sales Gains on sales Losses on sales Proceeds from sales Gains on sales Losses on sales

Stocks ¥ 8,954 ¥ 2,270 ¥ 108 $ 84,280 $ 21,366 $ 1,016
Bonds 323,337 1,144 449 3,043,458 10,768 4,226
Japanese government bonds 312,542 1,125 345 2,941,848 10,589 3,247
Municipal bonds 5,679 19 - 53,454 178 —
Short-term bonds — — — — — —
Corporate bonds 5,115 — 104 48,145 — 978
Other 42,958 1,174 697 404,348 11,050 6,560
Total ¥ 375,250 ¥ 4589 ¥ 1,256 $ 3,532,097 $ 43,194 $ 11,822

Other securities sold during the year ended March 31, 2017 (Millions of yen)

Proceeds from Sales Gains on sales Losses on sales

Stocks ¥ 8729 ¥ 2755 ¥ 226
Bonds 232,710 3,474 2,477
Japanese government bonds 221,330 3,433 2,476
Municipal bonds 10,880 40 -
Short-term bonds - - =
Corporate bonds 499 — 0
Other 66,317 1,293 1,412
Total ¥ 307,757 ¥ 7,523 ¥ 4,116

6. Securities which have readily determinable fair value are devaluated to fair value, and the difference between cost and fair value is treated as loss for the fiscal year if fair value has
significantly deteriorated compared with cost and fair value is unlikely to recover up to the acquisition cost.

The amount of the impairment loss for the year ended March 31, 2017 was zero.

The amount of the impairment loss for the year ended March 31, 2018 was zero.

The criteria for determining whether a security's fair value has "significantly deteriorated" are: where a security whose fair value is 50% or less and where a security whose fair value
exceeds 50% but is 70% or less of the acquisition cost, considering the quoted market price transition during a certain period in the past, business performance and other factors.

22. Net Unrealized Holding Gain on Securities Available for Sale

The components of net unrealized holding gain on securities available for sale recorded on the consolidated financial statements at March 31, 2018 and 2017
are as follows:

(2) Derivative transactions to which hedge accounting is applied
Derivative transactions to which hedge accounting is applied are set force in the table below. Contract amounts themselves below do not represent the market
risks of the derivative transactions.

Interest rate-related transactions (as of March 31, 2018)

(Millions of yen)

(Thousands of U.S. dollars)

Hedge accounting Contract amount maturing Contract amount maturing
method Type Major hedged item |  Contract amounts beyond one year Fair value Contract amounts beyond one year Fair value
Normal method Interest rate swaps | Loans, deposits
receive-floating/ ¥ 67,753 |¥ 65753  [¥(3143)|$ 637,735 |$ 618910 |$ (29589)
pay-fixed
Exceptional Interest rate swaps Loans
method recel_ve-ﬂoatmg/ 10,000 _ 04,126 _
pay-fixed
Total - - - ¥(3,143) - - $ (29,583)

Interest rate-related transactions (as of March 31, 2017)

Millions of yen)

Hedge accounting

Contract amount maturing

method Type Maijor hedged item | Contract amounts beyond one year Fair value
Normal method Interest rate swaps | Loans, deposits
;%3‘?;&%’303“”3/ ¥ 67929 |¥ 65929 ¥(3,708)
Exceptional Interest rate swaps Loans
method receive-floating/ 10.000 10.000
pay-fixed ’ ’
Total — — — ¥ (3,708)

1. The above transactions apply deferral hedge accounting stipulated in JICPA Industry Audit Committee Report No. 24 February 2, 2002. "Treatment for

Accounting and Auditing of Application of Accounting Standard for Financial Instruments in Banking industry."
2. The fair value of over-the-counter transactions is calculated based on the discounted present value and option pricing models.
3. Since derivative transactions qualifying for the exceptional method are treated as a unit of loans, those fair values are included in fair values of such loans.

Currency-related transactions (as of March 31, 2018)

(Millions of yen)

(Thousands of U.S. dollars)

Hedge accounting Contract amount maturing Contract amount maturing
method Type Major hedged item Contract amounts beyond one year Fair value Contract amounts beyond one year Fair value
Normal method Call loans in foreign
Currency swaps Ejlrle:w?r/\/e S| ¥ 7128 [¥ 2519 ¥ (@ |s 67,093 $ 23710 |g (28)
currencies
Total - - - ¥ (3 - — $ (28)

2018 2017 2018
(Millions of yen) (Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S. dollars)
Valuation Gains (losses) ¥ 26,725 ¥ 26,931 $ 251,553
Other Securities 26,725 26,931 251,553
Other moneys in trust — — —
(X)) Deferred tax liabilities 8,071 8,107 75,969
Ne_t unrealized holding _ gain on securities avallgble for sale (before 18,654 18,824 175583
adjustment based on equivalent amount of shareholdings)
(&) Amount equivalent to non-controlling interests equity — - -
(+) Net unrealized holding gain on securities available for sale owned by
companies accounted for using the equity method, the amount equivalent — - —
to owners of parent.
Net unrealized holding gain on securities available for sale ¥ 18,654 ¥ 18,824 $ 175,583

23. Fair Value Information on Derivatives

(1) Derivative transactions to which hedge accounting is not applied
Derivative transaction to which hedge accounting was not applied are set force in the table below. Contract amounts themselves do not reflect the market risks
of the derivative transactions.

Currency-related transactions

<March 31,2018> (Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S. dollars)

Contract | Contract amount Fair Unrealized Contract |Contract amount| Fair Unrealized
Type amounts  |maturing beyond value gain or amounts |maturing beyond value gain or
one year (loss) one year (loss)
Over-the-count | Forward exchange contracts
er transactions | Sold ¥ 6,651 ¥ - ¥ 10 ¥ 10 $ 62,603 $ - $ 94 $ 94
Bought 6,310 - 0 0 59,393 - 0 0
<March 31,2017> (Millions of yen)
Contract |Contract amount Fair Unrealized 1. The above transactions are measured at fair value
Type amounts  |maturing beyond value gain or and the resulting gains or losses are included in
one year (loss) the consolidated statement of income.
2. Fair values are obtained using the discounted
Over-the-count | Forward exchange contracts cash flow, etc.
er transactions | Sold ¥ 12188 | ¥ - ¥ (31) ¥ (31)
Bought 1,039 - 7) )
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Currency-related transactions (as of March 31, 2017)

(Millions of yen)

Hedge accounting

1.
Contract amount maturing

method Type Major hedged item Contract amounts beyond one year Fair value
Normal method Call loans in foreign
currency/
. . ¥
Currency swaps Call money in foreign ¥ 23,366 ¥ 49% 169
currencies 2
Total — — — ¥ 169

24. Retirement Benefit Plans

The Bank and the consolidated subsidiaries have defined-benefit corporation pension funds and lump-sum retirement benefits. Certain consolidated subsidiaries use a
simplified method for calculating retirement benefit expenses and liabilities. The following table sets forth the funded and accrued status of the plans and the

The above transactions apply deferral hedge
accounting stipulated in JICPA Industry Audit
Committee Report No. 25 July 29, 2002.
"Treatment for Accounting and Auditing for
Transactions in foreign currencies, in Banking
industry."

. The fair value is calculated based on the

discounted present value.

amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheet for the Bank's and the consolidated subsidiaries' defined retirement benefit plans:

(1) The changes on the retirement benefit obligation during the year ended

March 31, 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

2018 2017 2018

(Millions of yen)

Retirement benefit obligation at ...
the beginning of the year
Service cost.......
Interest cost.......
Actuarial gain/loss
Retirement benefits paid ...
Prior service cost

Retirement benefit obligation...
at the end of the year

(Thousands of U.S.dollars)

¥ 16,374 ¥ 17,071 $ 154,122

----------- 515 547 4,847
~~~~~~~~~~~ 97 68 913
492 (546) 4,631

(755) (766) (7,106)

¥ 16,723 ¥ 16,374 $ 157,407

(2) The changes in plan assets during the year ended March 31, 2018 and

2017 are as follows:

Plan assets at the beginning of the year ...
Expected return on plan assets ...
Actuarial gain/loss.........
Contributions by employers ...
Contributions by employees ...
Retirement benefits paid ...
Other ..ooevveiiiiieieen

Plan assets at the end of the year ...

2018 2017 2018

(Millions of yen)

(Thousands of U.S.dollars)

¥ 17,268 ¥ 17,136 $ 162,537
448 394 4,216

281 129 2,644

303 307 2,852

59 60 555

(756) (760) (7,115)

¥ 17,605 ¥ 17,268 $ 165,709
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(3) The following table sets forth the funded status of the plans and the
amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheet as of March 31,
2018 and 2017 for the bank’s and the consolidated subsidiaries’ defined
benefit plans:

2018 2017 2018

(Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S.dollars)

Funded retirement benefit obligation--- ¥ 16,675 ¥ 16,327 $ 156,955
Plan assets at fair value --- (17,605) (17,268) (165,709)
(930) (940) (8,753)

Unfunded retirement benefit obligation - - - 48 47 451
Net liability for retirement benefits
in the consolidated balance sheet (881) (893) (8,292)
Liability for retirement benefits- - - 48 47 451
Assets for retirement benefits. - - 930 940 8,753
Net liability for reti fi

et liability for retirement benefits ¥ (881 ¥  (893) $ (8.292)

in consolidated balance sheet

(4) The components of retirement benefit expense for the year ended March
31, 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

2018 2017 2018

(Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S.dollars)

Service cost --- - ¥ 455 ¥ 486 $ 4,282
Interest CoSt «-vvvnrveniiiniiinns 97 68 913

Expected return on plan assets --- (448) (394) (4,216)
Amortization of actuarial gain/loss cost - - - 17 167 160
Amortization of prior service cost --- - - -
[0)107=) G —_ — —_
Retirement benefit expense --- ¥ 121 ¥ 327 $ 1,138
Notes

1. Concerning the consolidated subsidiaries that use a simplified method,
all of the retirement benefit cost is included in the service cost.

2. Service cost does not include the amounts contributed by employees
with respect to corporate pension fund plans.

(5) The components of retirement benefits liability adjustments included in
other comprehensive income (before tax effect) for the years ended
March 31, 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

2018 2017 2018

(Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S.dollars)

Prior service cost...... ¥ - ¥ - $ -
Actuarial gain and loss (194) 843 (1,826)
Other - - -
Total ¥ (194) ¥ 843 $ (1,826)

(6) Unrecognized prior service cost and unrecognized actuarial loss
included in accumulated other comprehensive income (before tax
effect) as of March 31, 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

2018 2017 2018

(Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S.dollars)

Unrecognized prior service cost ... ¥ - ¥ - $ -
Unrecognized actuarial gain/loss ... (159) 34 (1,496)
Other .....cooiiiiiiiei, - - -
Total ... ¥ (159) ¥ 34 $ (1,496)

(7) The fair value of plan assets, by major category, as a percentage of
total plan assets as of March 31, 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

2018 2017

Bonds ... 30% 35%
Stocks oo 33% 32%
General account ........................ 28% 28%
Other ......ooooiiiiiiiiii e 9% 5%
Total L., 100% 100%

Notes

1. The expected long-term return on assets has been estimated based on
the anticipated allocation to each asset class and the expected
long-term return on assets held in each category.

(8) The assumptions used in accounting for the above plans are as follows:

2018 2017

1) Discountrate: ............cccoceeiiviiieeeel. 0.5% 0.6%
2) Expected rate of long-term return on assets: ... 2.6% 2.3%

25. Income Taxes

The major components of deferred tax assets and liabilities at March 31,
2018 and 2017 are summarized as follows:

2018 2017 2018

(Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S.dollars)

Deferred tax assets:

Reserve for possible loan losses ¥ 2,107 ¥ 1,758 $ 19,832

Devaluation on securities 240 246 2,259
Depreciation 713 753 6,711
Tax loss carryforwards 461 459 4,339
Deffered gain (loss) on hedging instruments 958 1,131 9,017
Other 1,647 1,174 15,502
Subtotal:deferred tax assets 6,129 5,522 57,690
Valuation allowance (1,308) (1,355) (12,311)
Total:deferred tax assets 4,821 4,167 45,378
Deferred tax liabilities:
Net unrealized holding gains on Securties available for sale (8,071) (8,107) (75,969)
Net defined benefits assets (283) (271) (2,663)
Other (150) (4) (1,411)
Total:deferred tax liabilities (8,505) (8,383) (80,054)
Net deferred tax assets (liabilities) ¥ (3,684) ¥ (4,216) $ (34,676)

Note: Net deferred tax assets (liabilities) as of March 31, 2018 and 2017
were included in the following accounts in the consolidated balance sheets.

2018 2017 2018

(Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S.dollars)

Deferred tax assets ¥ 289 ¥ 291 $ 2,720
Deferred tax liabilities (3,973) (4,507) (37,396)

For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2018, the reconciliation of the statutory
tax rate of the Bank to the effective income tax rate was as follows:

2018 201

Statutory tax rate 30.50% -
Valuation allowance (0.69%) -
Non-deductible expenses 0.50% -
Non-taxable income (0.78%) -
Per capita inhabitants' tax rate 0.50% -
Others (1.37%) -
Effective tax rate 28.66% -

Note: For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2017, the reconciliation of the
statutory tax rate of the Bank to the effective income tax rate is not stated as
the difference between them is less than 5% of the statutory tax rate.

26. Asset Retirement Obligations

Among asset retirement obligations, recorded amounts on the consolidated
financial statements.

A.Summary description of the asset retirement obligations
Obligation to restore to original condition, under leasing agreements for
land for operating facilities and for ATMs outside of the bank facilities,
obligation to remove toxic substances used at a portion of the operating
facilities and the administrative center, due to legal requirements, etc.

B.Calculation Method of Amount of Asset Retirement Obligations
The asset retirement obligation amounts are calculated by estimating the period
of use to be from 6 years to 30 years from time of acquisition, using a discount
rate of 0.0% to 2.0% based on the government bond yields as a reference.

C.Gains/Losses in total asset retirement obligation

2018 2017 2018

(Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S.dollars)

Balance at beginning of year ¥ 123 ¥ 122 $ 1,157
Increase in amount due to acquisition 10 0 94
of tangible fixed assets

Adjustment due to the passage of time 0 0 0
Reduction due to performance of 0 0 0
asset retirement obligations

Balance at the end of the year ¥ 134 ¥ 123 $ 1,261

27. Segment Information

. Outline of reportable segments

Reportable segments are components for which separate financial information is available and that are subject to periodic examination by the board of
directors to determine the allocation of management resources and assess performances.
The Bank and its consolidated subsidiaries comprise of the Bank and 7 consolidated subsidiaries that are engaged in the financial services business that

includes mainly banking services as well as leasing services.

Therefore, the reportable segments of the Bank and its consolidated subsidiaries comprise

the business.

‘Banking’ includes deposit taking, lending, investment in securities and exchange services.
‘Leasing’ represents lease business by Yamagin Lease Co., Ltd. , one of the consolidated subsidiaries.

2. Calculation method of ordinary income, profit or loss, assets, liabilities and other items by reportable segment
The accounting policies in Note 3, “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies”, are adopted for the reportable segments.

Reportable segment profit corresponds to ordinary income (net).

Ordinary income arising from intersegment transactions is based on arm’ s length prices.

‘Banking’

3. Information of ordinary income, profit or loss, assets, liabilities and other items by reportable segment

Year ended March 31, 2018

‘Leasing’

that are distinguished by the type of

(Millions of yen)

Reportable segment .
Other Total Adjustments fin aggil;?%ltlgfetrii nts
Banking Leasing Total

Ordinary income

External customers ¥ 35957 |¥ 5108 ¥ 41,065 |[¥ 1,423 ¥ 42,488 |¥ - ¥ 42,488

Intersegment 189 114 304 982 1,286 (1,286) -
Total 36,146 5,222 41,369 2,405 43,775 (1,286) 42,488
Segment profit (loss) 6,367 2) 6,365 640 7,005 133 7,138
Segment assets 2,606,825 15,952 2,622,777 12,824 2,635,601 (17,421) 2,618,179
Segment liabilities 2,455,545 12,549 2,468,095 8,435 2,476,531 (15,794) 2,460,737
Other items

Depreciation 1,103 15 1,119 3 1,122 - 1,122

Interest income 25,188 0 25,188 84 25,272 (86) 25,186

Interest expense 2,147 64 2,212 32 2,244 (76) 2,168

Increase in tangible fixed assets and intangible fixed assets 1,692 52 1,745 6 1,751 - 1,751
Year ended March 31, 2018 (Thousands of U.S.dollars)

Reportable segment o ' Consolidated
ther Total Adjustments financial statements
Banking Leasing Total

Ordinary income

External customers $ 338,452 $ 48,082 $ 386,534 $ 13,395 $ 399,930 $ - $ 399,930

Intersegment 1,782 1,079 2,862 9,249 12,112 (12,112) -
Total 340,234 49,162 389,397 22,645 412,042 (12,112) 399,930
Segment profit (loss) 59,933 (19) 59,913 6,026 65,939 1,252 67,192
Segment assets 24,537,136 150,153 24,687,289 120,709 24,807,999 (163,986) 24,644,013
Segment liabilities 23,113,196 118,126 23,231,322 79,400 23,310,722 (148,664) 23,162,058
Other items

Depreciation 10,386 149 10,535 29 10,565 — 10,565

Interest income 237,089 2 237,092 790 237,883 (810) 237,072

Interest expense 20,212 608 20,821 303 21,125 (716) 20,408

Increase in tangible fixed assets and intangible fixed assets 15,928 498 16,426 60 16,487 — 16,487

Notes

1. Ordinary income is substituted for sales of companies in other industries. "Adjustments" are elimination of intersegment transactions.
"Other" represents business segments that are not the reportable segments and comprises business support service, credit guarantee service, data processing, credit

2.

card business, venture capital business, etc.
3. "Adjustments" are as follows:

"Adjustments for segment profit" are eliminations of intersegment transactions.
4.

"Segment profit (loss)" corresponds to ordinary income(net) of Consolidated Statements of Income.
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Year ended March 31, 2017

(Millions of yen)

Reportable segment o ot . Consolidated
Banking Leasing Total ther ota justments financial statements

Ordinary income

External customers ¥ 39467 |¥ 4815 ¥ 44282 |[¥ 1,575 ¥ 45857 | ¥ 28 ¥ 45,886

Intersegment 200 115 316 867 1,183 (1,183) -
Total 39,667 4,930 44,508 2,442 47,041 (1,155) 45,886
Segment profit 7,254 111 7,365 650 8,016 67 8,083
Segment assets 2,602,273 14,944 2,617,217 12,288 2,629,505 (16,721) 2,612,784
Segment liabilities 2,454,342 11,540 2,465,882 8,372 2,474,255 (14,985) 2,459,270
Other items

Depreciation 952 13 966 3 970 - 970

Interest income 25,354 3 25,357 194 25,551 (93) 25,457

Interest expense 2,459 62 2,521 47 2,569 (88) 2,480

Increase in tangible fixed assets and intangible fixed assets 1,963 45 2,008 3 2,012 - 2,012

Notes

1. Ordinary income is substituted for sales of companies in other industries. "Adjustments" are elimination of intersegment transactions.
2. "Other" represents business segments that are not the reportable segments and comprises business support service, credit guarantee service, data processing, credit

card business, venture capital business, etc.
3. "Adjustments" are as follows:

(1) "Ordinary income for External customers" is elimination related to provision of reserve for loan losses.
(2) "Adjustments for segment profit" are eliminations of intersegment transactions.
4. "Segment profit" corresponds to ordinary income(net) of Consolidated Statements of Income.

4. Related information
Information by service
Year ended March 31, 2018

(Millions of yen)

Loan Security investment Lease Other Total
Ordinary income from external customers ¥ 18,358 ¥ 11,235 ¥ 5,109 ¥ 7,785 ¥ 42,488
Year ended March 31, 2018 (Thousands of U.S.dollars)
Loan Security investment Lease Other Total
Ordinary income from external customers $ 172,798 $ 105,756 $ 48,090 $ 73,284 $ 399,930

Information about geographical areas is omitted because the Bank and its consolidated subsidiaries conduct banking and other related activities in Japan without having foreign subsidiaries

or foreign branches.

Information about major customers is not presented because there are no customers having over a 10% share of ordinary income.

Year ended March 31, 2017

(Millions of yen)

Loan Security investment Lease Other Total
Ordinary income from external customers ¥ 18,318 ¥ 14,222 ¥ 4,813 ¥ 8,532 ¥ 45,886
5. Information concerning the impairment loss of fixed assets by reportable segment
The amount of the impairment loss for the year ended March 31, 2017 was zero.
Year ended March 31, 2018 (Millions of yen)
Reportable segment
Other Total
Banking Leasing Total
Impairment loss ¥ 72 ¥ — ¥ 72 ¥ — ¥ 72
Year ended March 31, 2018 (Thousands of U.S.dollars)
Reportable segment
Other Total
Banking Leasing Total
Impairment loss $ 684 $ — $ 684 $ — $ 684

28. Related Parties Information

Transactions with Related Parties
Transactions of the Corporation Submitting Consolidated Financial Statements with Related Parties.
Directors and Major Stockholders (only in the case of individuals) etc. of the Corporation Submitting Consolidated Financial Statements

Year ended March 31, 2018

(Millions of yen)

Name of Percentage of o
Company. etc Capital or | Description | Ownership of | Relation to | Description Account Balance at end
Category | o Ing' é’ o' | Location | Investment | of Business | Voting Rights, | Affiliated of | Amount of oot | of Financial
Full“lillarL;e Contribution|  or Job etc. Owned (or | Parties | Transaction | Transaction Period
owned by) (%)
Companigs, etc. in which Yamagata Loans
Diectors and ther close ggﬁ;gﬁaén: City, 35 Mar?u?g?:tur— Owned by, Credit Loan of 38 and bills 49
relatives own a majority Ltd. (Note ) Yamagata or directly, 0.01 | customer funds dis-
of the voting rights. : Prefecture counted
Year ended March 31, 2018 (Thousands of U.S.dollars)
Name of Percentage of b
Capital or | Description | Ownership of | Relation to | Description Balance at end
Category C? mzﬁ,r:é' eltg. Location | Investment | of Business| Voting Rights, | Affiliated of Amount of Aﬁc%unt of Financial
° Full NarL’Jna:e s Contribution|  or Job etc. Owned (or | Parties | Transaction | Transaction ame Period
u owned by) (%)
Companies, etc. in which Yamagata Loans
Directors and their close ggﬁlz(gzag]: City, 329 M ar?uafgitur- Owned by, Credit Loan of 357 and bills 461
refes omnamajry | | (Note 5) | Yamagata or directly, 0.01 | customer funds dis-
of the voting rights. . Prefecture counted

Notes

1. The terms and conditions of the transactions and the policies governing decision making for the terms and conditions of such transactions are the same as for other customers. The
transaction amount specifies that average balance.
2. A majority of the voting rights of Otokoyama Shuzou Co., Ltd. is owned by Board of Director Gisuke Ohara and his close relatives.

Year ended March 31, 2017

(Millions of yen)

Name of Percentage of
Capital or | Description | Ownership of | Relation to | Description Balance at end
Category g?m?ii%ugltg Location | Investment | of Business | Voting Rights, | Affiliated of Té;%%gg; Aﬁgg}u{:t °f Financial
Full Name Contribution or Job etc. Owned (or Parties | Transaction Period
owned by) (%)
i Yamagata Loans
mpanies, !
pes:, | Qtokovama City, Sake Owned by, Credit | Loanof and bills
etc. in which | Shuzou Co., 35 Manufactur-| girectlv. 0.01 fund 40 f 43
Directors and Yamagata irectly, O. customer unds dis-
Ltd. (Note 2) Pref er nted
their close refecture counte
relatives own | yamagata Yamagata
amajority of | gake Service City, 30 Food/Drink _ Credit Loan of 12
the voting Corporation | Yamagata Wholesaler customer funds
rights. (Note 3) Prefecture
Notes

1. The terms and conditions of the transactions and the policies governing decision making for the terms and conditions of such transactions are the same as for other customers. The
transaction amount specifies that average balance.

2. A majority of the voting rights of Otokoyama Shuzou Co., Ltd. is owned by Board of Director Gisuke Ohara and his close relatives.

3. A majority of the voting rights of Yamagata Sake Service Corporation is owned by Board of Director Gisuke Ohara and his close relatives.

29. Amounts Per Stock

Amounts per stock of net assets, net income and diluted net income, as presented below,
are based on the number of stocks outstanding at each balance sheet date and the
weighted average number of stocks of common stock outstanding during each year

2018 2017 2018

(Yen) (U.S. dollars)
Net assets ¥ 482585 ¥ 4,705.09 $ 45.42
Net income ¥ 153.04 ¥ 167.74 $ 1.44
Diluted
net income ¥ 136.52 ¥ 149.68 $ 1.28
Notes

1. The number of the Bank's common stocks held by board incentive BIP trust is included
in the treasury stocks which was deducted from the number of common stocks
outstanding at each balance sheet date, respectively. The weighted average number of
the Bank's common stocks held by board incentive BIP trust is included in the treasury
stocks which was deducted from the weighted average number of stocks of common
stock outstanding, respectively.

IN]

Effective on October 1.2017, the Bank executed the 1-for-5 stock consolidation. Per stock
information are calculated under assumption that the stock consolidation had taken effect
at the preceding fiscal year.

30. Significant Subsequent Events

There is not applicable matter.

The basis for the calculation of net income per stock for the year ended March 31, 2018

2018 2017 2018

(Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S. dollars)

Net income attributable

to owners of parent ¥ 4,988 ¥ 5,473 $ 46,950

Amount not attributable

to common stock - - -

Net income attributable to owners

of parent related to common stock 4,988 5,473 46,950

Weighted average

number of stocks of

common stock outstanding 32,595 32,630 32,595
thousand thousand thousand

Effect of dilutive securities

bonds with stock acquisition rights 3,944 3,937 3,944
thousand thousand thousand
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Non-Consolidated Statements
For the years ended March 31. 2018 and 2017

of Income

2018

(Millions of yen)

2017

(Millions of yen)

2018

(Thousands of U.S.dollars)

Ordinary INCOME oo 36,146 ¥ 39,667 $ 340,234
NOI’I-CO"SO'IdatEd Balance Sheet Interest Income L AR 25,188 25,354 237,089
As of March 31, 2018 and 2017 Interest on loans and discounts ---.--.... 17,797 17,947 167,519
! 201 8 20 1 7 20 1 8 Interest and dividends on securities 7,216 7184 67,929
(Millions of yen) (Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S.dollars) Interest on call !oans '''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''' 92 130 871
Assets Interest on receivables under resale agreements (0) - (3)
Cash and due from banks..............cccuvvviiiiiiiiiie e 82,337 ¥ 153,050 $ 775,018 Interest on deposits with banks 8 9 78
Call I08NS ... 1339 8377 12,612 Other iNterest -.....oooevveeeeeneeen 73 82 694
Monetary Claims BOUBNE ... 5’339 5‘648 50,260 Fees and COMMISSIONS «««xvvvveerrmnniiiii 6,618 6,687 62,299
Trading securities ’ 4 ' 20 ’ 44 Fees and commissions on domestic and foreign exchange ------ 1,571 1,558 14,787
o T Other fees and COMMISSIONS  «+«vverrernernernernererererernaenaanns 5,047 5128 47,511
Securities T PR 733,811 718,370 6,907,115 Other Operating iNCOME.  .vevverrrvveeeerree. 1376 4590 12,955
Loans and bills discounted ............cccoeiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 1,735,529 1,682,480 16,335,930 Gains on sales of trading securities 0 0 0
For:elgn EXCRANEBE ..ieiiit i 941 979 8,864 GAINS ON SAIES OF DONGS  +rvvrrererererereeeeseeeseeeeses oo, 1376 4172 12,954
ot er. assgts """""""""""""" 19,252 4,504 181,220 Income from derivatives other than for trading or hedging ------ — 417 -
Tangible fixed assets 14,752 14,313 138,856 OTHEI INGOME v veeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee et eeteeee et e ene e eee e 2963 3,034 27.890
Buildings ... 3,811 3,608 35,873 Recoveries of written off claims «ovvvveeiiiiiiii 7 3 74
LN o 9,109 9175 85,747 Gains on sales of stocks and other securities -« sveevvvveeee 2,557 2,662 24,073
Leased assets ... 39 52 369 OFNIEE - vveeneemeene et e et e e e e e e et e 397 368 3,742
COoNStraction iN ProCESS  .....cuiuiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 26 30 250 .
Other tangible fixed @ssets ............ccoviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeie 1,765 1,446 16,616 Ordinary Expenses 29,779 32,413 280,301
Intangible fixed assets .............. 1,965 1,898 18,500 INEErESt EXPENSE  ++vvvvvvsrerrrrriiaartiiiiiieeeetiie et 2,147 2,459 20,212
Software ... 1,759 1,690 16,563 INtEreSt ON AEPOSILS «+ervrvrrreerrrrnereriiiiieeetiie et 753 1,081 7.092
Other intangible fixed assets 205 207 1,936 Interest on negotiable certificate of deposits 60 101 567
Prepaid pension COSt ..o 1,089 906 10,258 INterest oN Call MONEY  +++xrerevrermmneeriieriiee e 5 17 47
Customers' liabilities for acceptances and guarantees .................. 16,582 17,129 156,085 Interest on payables under securities lending transaction  ------ 274 139 2,587
Reserve for possible 10an [0SSES  .........coocviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie, (6,839) ¥ (6,124) $ (64,380) Interest on borrowings and rediscounts 125 62 1,181
TOt@l @SSETS ...ovviiiiiieieeee e 2,606,108 2.601,556 24,530,387 Interest on interest swaps --------evvveeee 847 965 7,973
L Other interest - vvveviiiiiiiii 81 92 763
Liabilities and Net Assets Fees and COMMISSIONS PAYMENES - cvvvrrvvnneriinniiiiii 3,102 2,828 29,201
Liabilities Fees and commissions on domestic and foreign exchange ------ 348 350 3,282
. Other fees and COMMISSIONS «cvevrrrrettemiiuieeeiiiiiie i, 2753 2 478 25919
Deposits .........ccocciiiiiiiiiiiiiii 2,209,410 ¥ 2,183,249 $ 20,796,408 . ’ ' ’
Negotiable certificate of deposits .. 117,797 119,131 1,108,783 Othﬁ:) sgirr?tflgrge g;}pizzﬁaaé-e- transacnons 2,0:13 2 3??16 18,222
Call MONBY ..t
all money - . . 7,968 11,219 75,000 LOSS 0N sales Of DONAS <vvverrerimieiiiii 1,100 3,675 10,357
Payables under securities lending transactions ........................... 26,536 45,126 249,774 Expenses on derivatives other than for trading or hedging ... 875 = 8,244
IIzorrc?wed mrc:nev ..................................................................... 50,863 50,155 478,756 General and AAMINISTAtIVE EXDENSES «rrsvrrrserrsorsrserssrrsersersesens 20716 20,963 195,001
oreign gxc ange ..... B RS I TIPS PP PRI 32 53 301 OEE BXPENSES v vveeveeeeeemrreeommeeeeeeeereeeeeeeseeseeeeeeee. 1799 2300 16.936
Bonds with stock acquisition rights  ............................ 10,624 11,219 100,000 Provision on allowance for 108N I0SSES - vxvvvrrrrrereeeeeeeaaaaaaees. 1138 1677 10,720
Other liabilities ........... sarasasasannanes 9,959 11,205 93,747 Losses on sales of stocks and other SeCUrties -«ee.ooee... 108 436 1,025
Reserve for bonuses to directars ..., : 25 22 235 Losses on devaluation of stocks and other securities 1 0 10
Reserve for stock payments of board incentive plan ..................... 45 24 431 (0120 SRS 550 195 5,180
Reserve for losses on dormant deposits repayments ..................... 143 47 1,347 .
Reserve for [0SSes 0N CONtINGENCIES ...........cccvveeeeeiiieeeeeeeineennn. 301 296 2,834 Ordinary Income(Net) ..o 6,367 7,254 59,933
Deferred tax liabilities ... 3,948 4,206 37,169 EXtraordinary iNCOME  ««+++eeerrrnneerrrmriinneretiiiinaeertiiinaeereiiieeeeees 0 — 1
Deferred tax liabilities arising from revaluation of land.................. 1,308 1,324 12,319 Gain on disposal of NON-CUIMENt @SSELS «++vvvvvreerrrrrrnierriiiinnnnn. 0 — 0
Acceptance and guarantees ...............o.cooiiiii 16,582 ¥ 17,129 $ 156,085 (0127 SN 0 — 1
Total liabilities ... 2,455,545 2,454,342 23,113,196 Extraordinary 10SS€S — -+oveveiiiiiiiiiii 146 49 1,374
Loss on disposal of non-current assets --- 73 49 690
Net Assets IMPAIrMENT 10SS  «-vvvveevminiiiiii 72 — 684
COMMON STOCK e e 12.008 ¥ 12.008 $ 113,032 I .
. ’ ’ ’ ncom fore income taxes ..---cvceieiiiiiiiiiien 221 7,205 58,560
Capital SUMPIUS ... 4,932 4,932 46,428 come before inco 6,
Retained  ariNES .......oivuiiiiiiiee et 119,179 116,024 1,121,792 INCOME taXES-CUIMENT +vvnvveriniiiiiii 2,356 2,794 22,182
THEASUIY STOCK ..o (3,176) (3,171) (29,896) Income taxes-defermed oo (410) (725) (3,860)
Total shareholders' qUItY  ...........c.cocveeveeeeeeeeeeeieeeeeeeeeeeeeen 132,944 129,794 1.251.357 Total INCOME AXES  «rrvrrvrrrrrsrrirrirrir s 1,946 2,068 18,321
Net unrealized holding gain on securities available for sale ......... 18,638 18,810 175,434 NEE INCOIME  cveeeeee ettt 4974 ¥ 5136 $ 40238
Deferred gain (loss) on hedging instruments (2,184) (2,578) (20,564) , ‘
Revaluation of land 1,164 1,188 10,963 .
Total .o 17,618 17,419 165,833 Amounts per share: 20 1(ye8n) 20 1(ye7n) %?d:!"g)
Total NEt @SSETS ...cuiiniiiiii 150,562 147,214 1,417,191 Net income 3115 15740 '1' »
Total liabilities and net assets  .........cooooiiiiiiiiiiiii I : : E
2606108 ¥ 2601556 _§ 24530387 Net assets 4,619.35 4,516.39 43.48

Note : Effective on October 1.2017, the Bank executed the 1-for-5 stock consolidation. Per stock information are calculated under assumption that the stock consolida-
tion had taken effect at the preceding fiscal year.
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Corporate Data

Management

(As of June 22, 2018)

President

Kichishige Hasegawa

Senior Managing Directors

Shinichiro Miura
Yoshihiro Ishikawa

Managing Directors

Satoshi Nagai
Kiyohiro Naganuma
Shinya Katsuki

Organization

(As of June 22, 2018)

General Meeting of Shareholders

Directors

Yoshihiro Domon
Hiroshi Koya
Yoshitaka Misawa
Eiji Sato

Takehiro Suzuki
Yumiko Inoue

Haruhiko Tanno (Audit & Supervisory Committee Member)
Masaki Kakizaki (Audit & Supervisory Committee Member)
Shinichi Nakayama (Audit & Supervisory Committee Member)

Bin Hamada (Audit & Supervisory Committee Member)

Yasumasa Gomi (Audit & Supervisory Committee Member)

Gisuke Ohara (Audit & Supervisory Committee Member)

—[ Secretariat

)

—[ General Planning & Coordinations Division ]

Audit & Supervisory Committee]

Board of Directors

Governance Committee ]

—[ Human Resources & General Administration Division ]

Executive Committee

Senior Managing Directors
Managing Directors

—[ Corporate Business Planning Division

)

—[ Corporate Business Support Division

—[ Financial Markets Division

— Credit Division

—[ Operation Administration Division

—[ System Planning Division

—[ Tokyo Liaison Office

[ Auditing Division }——

—[ Head Office Business Division

—[ Branches

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

Directory

Headquarters:
1-2, Nanukamachi 3-chome, Yamagata 990-8642,Japan

Phone:+81 23 623 1221

Financial Markets Division:
1-2, Nanukamachi 3-chome, Yamagata 990-8642,Japan

Phone:+81 23 634 7547
Fax:+81 23 625 7185
S.W.LF.T.: YAMBJPJT

Foreign Exchange Offices:
Head Office
1-2, Nanukamachi 3-chome, Yamagata 990-8642,Japan

Phone:+81 23 623 1221

Yonezawa Branch
1-5, Monto-machi 3-chome, Yonezawa 992-0039,Japan

Phone:+81 238 22 2010

Nagai Branch
11-14,Sakae-machi, Nagai 993-0084,Japan

Phone:+81 238 88 2105

Sagaechuo Branch
2-33, Chuo 1-chome, Sagae 991-0021,Japan

Phone:+81 237 86 1141

Tendo Branch
9-1,Higashihoncho 1-chome, Tendo 994-0026,Japan

Phone:+81 23 653 3355

Shinjo Branch
2-16, Hon-cho, Shinjo 996-0027,Japan
Phone:+81 233 22 2461

Tsuruoka Branch
1-13, Hon-cho 2-chome, Tsuruoka 997-0034,Japan

Phone:+81 235 22 5530

Sakata Branch
10-1, Hon-cho 3-chome, Sakata 998-0043,Japan

Phone:+81 234 22 7222

Tokyo Branch
5-16, Kyobashi 2-chome, Chuo-ku, Tokyo 104-0031,Japan

Phone:+81 3 3567 1861

Bank Data: (As of March 31, 2018)
Date of Incorporation: 1896

Authorized Stocks: 59,670,000

Issued Stocks: 34,000,000

Number of Shareholders: 8,058

Number of Employees: 1,303

Yurihonjo
Akita district: 1 branch

Yamagata
Yamagata district: Head Office s dai
and 69 branches 17 endai

Miyagi district: 6 branches
Saitama
Saitama district: 1 branch

Koriyama

Fukushima district: 1 branch
Utsunomiya

Tochigi district: 1 branch

Tokyo
Tokyo district: 1 branch

(Total: Head Office and 80 branches)
(As of March 31, 2018)

Cherries
Cherries are a special product of Yamagata Prefecture.
Stylized cherries are used as the symbol of The Yamagata Bank, Ltd.
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